A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Joint Annual Board of Directors Meeting & Annual Meeting of the Members

ECIDA Offices
95 Perry Street, 4% Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

April 23, 2025
at 12:45 p.m.

Call to Order
Approval of Minutes
2.1 Approval of the March 26, 2025 Minutes of the Meeting of the Membership (Action Item) (Pages 2-6)
Reports / Action Items / Information Items:
3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 7-10)
3.2 Annual Report of Directors (Informational) (Page 11)
3.3 Loan Status Report (Informational) (Page 12)
3.4 Nominating Committee Update
a) Election of Officers/Committee Appointments (Action Item) (Pages 13-15)

3.5 Renaissance Commerce Park — WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project SEQR Determination (Action Item) (Pages 16-91)
3.6 Erie County Funding Agreement (Action Item) (Pages 92-95)

Management Team Reports:
4.1

Adjournment- Next Meeting May 28, 2025



Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE

BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

DATE AND PLACE:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(ILDC)

March 26, 2025, at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 4" Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York 14203

Denise Abbott, Daniel Castle, Richard Lipsitz, Jr.,, Hon. Timothy
Meyers and Hon. Taisha St. Jean Tard

Hon. Mark Poloncarz and Hon. Christopher Scanlon

John Cappellino, President & CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of Operations; Jerry Manhard,
Chief Lending Officer; Grant Lesswing, Director of Business
Development; Carrie Ann Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/ Assistant
Secretary; Soma Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio Manager, Brian
Krygier, Director of Information Technology, Atiga Abidi,
Accounting Manager; Andrew Federick, Property and Business
Development Officer; Robbie Ann McPherson, Director of Marketing
& Communications and Robert G. Murray, Esq., General
Counsel/Harris Beach Murtha

Zaque Evans and Michael Szukala on behalf of Erie County; Yessica
Vasquez on behalf of City of Buffalo; Jonathan Epstein on behalf of
Business News

There being a quorum present at 1:35 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the “ILDC”) was called to
order by Vice Chair, Mr. Lipsitz, who presided over the meeting in the absence of Chair

Poloncarz.

MINUTES

Ms. Abbott moved, and Mr. Castle seconded to approve of the January 22, 2025 minutes.
Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote, and the minutes were unanimously approved.



REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS / INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Profic presented the February financial reports. The balance sheet
shows that the ILDC finished the month with total assets of $14.6M. The cash decrease from
January is the result of the repayment to ECIDA of $2.3M of borrowed UDAG funds with grant
funds. Liabilities of $7.2M are amounts owed to ECIDA and deferred grant revenue. The
corresponding decrease with cash and amounts owned to ECIDA. Net assets were $7.4M. The
February income statement shows $3,700 of revenue, $3,500 of expenses and $18,000 of net
special project revenue. Factoring in non-operating income there was a net income of $18,246 in
February. The year-to-date income statement shows operating revenues of $7,000 and expenses
of $18,000. Special project revenue of $18,000 and $500 of non-operating income lead to net
income of $7,176 so far in 2025. Mr. Lipsitz directed that the report be received and filed.

Finance and Audit Committee Update. Ms. Profic introduced Mr. Szukala, Chair of the
Finance & Audit Committee, to the Board. Ms. Profic provided members with an update on the
most recent Finance & Audit Committee meeting. She advised that the Agency’s auditors,
Lumsden McCormick, presented a draft of the 2024 audited financial statements. Ms. Profic
reviewed the three main points of the presentation were an unmodified (clean) opinion on the
financial statements, there were no uncorrected audit adjustments, and there were no material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies noted (no management letter comments). The Committee
also reviewed and recommend the items listed under #2-#4 for approval or re-adoption: 2024
Public Authorities Report, 2024 Investment Reports, and Investment & Deposit Policy. The
Committee also approved the Finance & Audit Committee Self-Evaluation and reviewed
Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls and Corporate Credit Card

usage.

The Committee Self-Evaluation was provided in the Board package. Each year the
Committee completes a self-evaluation, as required by the Committee Charter. In 2024, the
Committee officially convened a total of five times and fulfilled its duties as documented. Mr.
Lipsitz directed that the report be received and filed.

Audited Financial Statements. Ms. Profic reviewed the draft 2024 audited financial
statements, required communications, and management letter. Lumsden’s required
communications with those charged with governance, which documents the auditors’
responsibility related to the financial statement audit, notes that there were no matters of concern
that arose related to the significant risks identified, a summary of accounting estimates made
within the financials, that there were no uncorrected audit adjustments, and no disagreements
with management. Ms. Profic mentioned, an unmodified opinion was issued on the statements.
The management letter noting no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. The
Representation Letter will be signed once the audit is approved by the board. The draft financial
statements were provided in the Board package. As a public authority, the Agency’s financial
statements are prepared based on Governmental Accounting Standards and include a
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, which provides a condensed overview of the
statements. The balance sheets show total assets of $17.1M at December 31, 2024, a $52,000
decrease from the end of 2023. Current assets increased $485,000, due to a $3.3M increase in




cash and a $2.8M decrease in grants receivable. Non-current assets decreased $537,000 from
$7.4M to $6.9M due mainly to a decrease in land held for sale. Liabilities increased $128,000,
due to an increase in uneamed revenue associated with grants awarded but not yet spent/earned.
ILDC has been borrowing funds from ECIDA’s UDAG fund to cash flow projects at RCP that
are being funded with reimbursable grants, with $4.2M due to ECIDA at the end of 2024. There
was a decrease in net position of $179,000. The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position (income statements) detail the change in net position for the year. Operating
revenues of $491,000 include a bond administrative fee of $337,000, a book gain on land held
for sale, and interest on loans. Operating expenses of $560,000 consists mainly of the $357,000
transferred to ECIDA (mostly the bond fee), plus $151,000 of general & administrative costs.
The provision for uncollectible loans was $47,000 for 2024. Most of the microloans have a
forgiveness component if a certain amount of principal is paid as agreed. What this provision for
uncollectible loans does is recognize the best-case scenario, where borrowers are repaying 50%
or 60% of their loan and the rest being forgiven. Special project grants include income and
expenses related to grants - including $1.2M from ESD and EDA related to sewer work at RCP.
Grant expenses of $1.6M are mainly related to RCP. Overall, there was a decrease in net position
of $179,000 in 2024, compared to an increase of $236,000 in 2023. The cash flows statement
details the changes in cash each year. The remainder of the financials are the notes and
supplementary information. These drafts were reviewed and discussed in detail with the Finance
& Audit Committee on March 20, and they recommended approval to the Board. We will
continue to work with Lumsden McCormick to file IRS Form 990.

Mr. Castle moved and Mr. Meyers seconded to approve of the audited financial
statements. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the audited financial statements were

unanimously approved.

2024 Investment Report. Ms. Profic reviewed this report which is required by Public
Authorities Law and includes ILDC’s investment guidelines, the results of our annual audit of
these guidelines, and detail of investment income and fees for the year. The accounts held by the
Corporation has $10,500 of investment income was earned on these accounts during 2024,
compared to $6,400 in 2023, and no fees were paid. The majority of the investment income
earned is remitted back to ESD under the terms of their grant agreement. This report was
reviewed by the Finance & Audit Committee at their March 20 meeting and recommended to the

Board for approval.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Meyers seconded to approve of the 2024 Investment Report.
Mr. Lipsitz then called for the vote and the 2024 Investment Report was unanimously approved.

Governance Committee Update: Ms. McDuffie provided the Board members with an
update on the most recent Governance Commmittee meeting and the self-evaluations of the
Committee and the Board of Directors. Mr. Lipsitz directed that the report be received and filed.

ILDC Loan Status Report. Mr. Manhard provided this report to Board members. M.
Lipsitz directed that the report be received and filed.




RCP Brownfield Cleanup Program. Mr. Cappellino provided members with an update on
the RCP Brownfield Cleanup Program extension and legislation updated. Mr. Lipsitz directed
that the report be received and filed.

ANNUAL REPORTS & POLICIES

2024 Mission Statement, Performance Measures and Results. Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the
2024 Mission Statement, Performance Measures and Results. This statement and measures were
reviewed by the Governance Committee at their meeting on March 19" and has been
recommended to the Board for approval.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Meyers seconded to approve of the 2024 Mission Statement,
Performance Measures and Results. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the 2024 Mission
Statement, Performance Measures and Results was unanimously approved.

2025 Mission Statement and Performance Measures. Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2025
Mission Statement and Performance Measures, This statement and performance measures were
reviewed by the Governance Committee at their meeting on March 19% and has been
recommended to the Board for approval.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Meyers seconded to approve of the 2025 Mission Statement
and Performance Measures. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the 2025 Mission Statement

and Performance Measures was unanimously approved.

2024 Public Authorities Report. Ms. Profic reviewed the 2024 Public Authorities Report.
Ms. Profic stated as a Public Authority of the State of New York, ECIDA and its affiliates are
required to comply with the NY'S Public Authorities Law and submit a comprehensive annual
report including information on several topics. Several of the items are covered by other
documents, like the operations and accomplishments and financial statements, which are note
throughout the document. The third item, Mission Statement & Performance Measurements, is
updated each year with actual results. Many of the items included are standard from year to year
and are also approved or re-adopted by the Board annually and was updated for 2023 to update
the work underway at ILDC-owned properties, the RDC’s lending activity, and the approval of
the Economic Inclusion Policy. Attachments include outstanding bond information, salary &
benefit information, projects undertaken by each entity, our Property Report, Board Member
attendance, and the Procurement Reports for each entity. Once approved, the certification will be
signed by Mr. Cappellino and Ms. Profic and the report will be posted to the website. This report
was reviewed by the Governance Committee at their meeting on March 20% and the Finance &
Audit Committee at their meeting on March 21% and has been recommended to the Board for

approval.

Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Meyers seconded to approve of the 2024 Public Authorities
Report. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the 2024 Public Authorities Report was

unanimously approved.



RE-ADOPT POLICIES AND CHARTERS

Ms. Profic noted that Items 4(d)-4(i) on the agenda are either re-adoptions of policies or
approvals, as required by the ABO. Harris Beach Murtha has reviewed each of the items for any
pertinent updates and have communicated to us minor updates for items: (d) Airborne Infectious
Disease Policy, (¢) FOIL Policy, (f) Investment and Deposit Policy, (g) Property Disposition
Guidelines; (h) Record Retention and Disposition Policy, and (i) Sexual Harassment Policy. All
the policies were reviewed with either the Governance or Finance & Audit Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval. Ms. Abbott moved and Mr. Castle seconded to approve
of the various polices and charters as itemized below. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the
following policies and charters were then unanimously approved:

e  Airborne Infectious Disease Policy
Freedom of Information Law (FOIL)
Investment and Deposit Policy

Property Disposition Guidelines

Record Retention and Disposition Policy
Sexual Harassment Policy

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Lipsitz adjourned the meeting at
1:55 p.m.

Dated: March 26, 2025

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary



Industrial Land Development Corp.

Financial Statements
As of March 31, 2025




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2025

March 2025 February 2025 December 2024
ASSETS:
Restricted Cash * 1,470,792 $ 1,408,566 $ 3,672,036
Grants Receivable 6,185,177 6,185,177 6,413,558
Loans Receivable, net 385,147 394,741 364,170
Prepaid Acquisition Costs 706,077 705,372 705,372
Total Current Assets 8,747,193 8,693,856 11,155,136
Capital Assets 5,941,332 5,941,332 5,941,332
Total Assets 14,688,524 $ 14,635,188 $ 17,096,468
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS:
Accounts Payable 1,750 $ 1,530 $ 66,803
Due to/(from) ECIDA 2,165,651 1,913,176 4,249,733
Other Liabilities 5,126,514 5,306,507 5,373,133
Total Liabilities 7,293,914 7,221,213 9,689,668
Restricted Fund Balance 7,394,610 7,413,975 7,406,799
Total Liabilities & Net Assets 14,688,524 $ 14,635,188 $ 17,096,468
Loan Portfolio Summary: March 2025 February 2025 December 2024
# of Loans 41 42 42

* Cash is invested in interest bearing accounts at M&T Bank. The maximum FDIC insured amount is
$250,000 with the remainder collateralized with government obligations by the financial institution.




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

REVENUES:
Interest iIncome - Loans

Grant Income - Microloan Program

Operational Grant
Other income
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA
Professional Services
General Office Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant
Other grant revenue
Industrial Land Park costs
Angola Ag Park costs
Other grant expenses

Total Special Project Grants

NET OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS):

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
Interest Income

Total Nonoperating Revenue

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Income Statement
Month of March 2025

Actual vs. Budget

Actual Budget Variance
1,710  § 1600 § 110
- 19,500 (19,500)
- 20,800 (20,800)
1,750 2,000 (250)
3,460 43,900 (40,440)
14500 $ 14,500 $ -
5,329 3,800 1,529
- 400 (400)
- 600 (600)
19,829 19,300 529
156,786 138,500 18,286
(308) 8,300 (8,608)
308 2,100 (1,793)
21,534 21,300 234
(159,902) (146,800) (13,102)
(206) (2,100) 1,894
(21,534) (29,700) 8,166
(3,322) (8,400) 5,078
(19,691) 16,200 (35,891)
326 200 126
326 200 126
(19,365) $ 16,400 $ (35,765)

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2025 budget.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")
Income Statement
Year to Date: March 31, 2025

| Actual vs. Budget | | Actual vs. Prior Year
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans $ 5,381 $ 4800 $ 581 $ 5,381 $ 4704 % 676
Grant Income - Microloan Program - 58,500 (58,500) - - -
Operational Grant - 62,500 (62,500) - - -
Other Income 5,250 5,900 (650) 5,250 - 5,250
Total Revenues 10,631 131,700 (121,069) 10,631 4,704 5,926
EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA $ 43,500 43,500 - $ 43,500 $ 6,000 § 37,500
Professional Services 5,329 11,400 (6,071) 5,329 4,510 819
General Office Expenses 521 1,300 (779) 521 422 99
Other Expenses (237) 1,800 (2,037) (237) (100) (137)
Total Expenses 38,138 58,000 (19,862) 38,138 10,832 27,306
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD 178,591 415,500 (236,909) 178,591 52,717 125,874
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA 100,167 25,000 75,167 100,167 79,963 20,204
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant - 6,300 (6,300) - - -
Other grant revenue 62,984 64,000 (1,016) 62,984 3,947 59,037
Industrial Land Park costs {261,251) (440,500) 179,249 (261,251) (133,980) (127,272)
Angola Ag Park costs (3,041) (6,300) 3,259 (3,041) (4,511) 1,470
Other grant expenses (62,984) (89,000) 26,016 (62,984) (3,947) (59,037)
Total Special Project Grants 14,466 (25,000) 39,466 14,466 (5,810} 20,276
NET OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS): (13,042) 48,700 (61,742) (13,042) (11,938) {1,104)
NONOPERATING REVENUE:
Interest Income 853 500 353 853 451 402
Total Nonoperating Revenue 853 500 353 853 451 402
NET INCOME/(LOSS): $ (12,189) § 49,200 $ (61,389) $ (12,189) $ (11,487) $ (702)

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2025 budget.

-10-



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMEMT CORPORATION

MEMORANDUM

TO: Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation Members
FROM: Mollie Profic, CFO

SUBJECT: Annual Report of Directors

DATE: April 23, 2025

Under Section 519 of the New York State Not-for-profit Corporation Law, ILDC is required to present an
annual report at its annual member meeting. The annual report is to include 1) information on the assets and
liabilities of ILDC as of the end of the prior fiscal year, 2) the principal changes in assets and liabilities
during the prior fiscal year, 3) the revenue or receipts of ILDC during the prior fiscal year, 4) the expenses
or disbursements of ILDC during the prior fiscal year and 5) The number of members of ILDC as of the date
of the report, together with a statement of increase or decrease in the number of members during the prior
fiscal year and a statement of the place where the names and places of residence of the current members

may be found.

The audited financial statements were approved by ILDC’s Board of Directors at their March 26, 2025
meeting and were presented to the ILDC members in order to satisfy the first four requirements noted
above. A copy of the audited financial statements can be located at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-

corporate-reports.

In satisfaction of the final requirement of the NYS Not-for-profit Corporation Law, ILDC has 1 membership
position at April 23, 2025 which is the same as reported at the prior year’s annual meeting. The name of the
member of ILDC may be found at: http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-board-of-directors while the places of
residence of current board members may be found at the ILDC offices at 95 Perry Street, Suite 403, Buffalo,

New York 14203.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

-11-



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELCFMENT CORPORATION

Loan Status Report
April 2025
ILDC Loans Approved Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
NONE.
ILDC Loans Closed Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
NONE.
Loans in Closing Process Municipality Amount
NONE.
Loans in the Pipeline Municipality Amount
NONE.
2025 — Loans Approved YTD Loan Total  Jobs to be Created Retained Jobs
2 $55,000 2 1

Loan Portfolio Performance

Past Due Loans:

Outstanding Amount Past Days Past

Loan Balance Due Due Comments
Borrower Chapter 7 bankruptcy has been

Kevin Thie d/b/a discharged. No proceeds available to

Buffalo Firewood $34,723 $2,349 360+ distribute to creditors.

Wild Discs, LLC $32,201 $2,014 360+ Filed Judgment, garnishing wages,
Filed Bankruptcy -Feb, 2025

L&B Transportation $27,041 $1,007 90+ Moved to Alabama, business closed,

Process of filing judgment

Portfolio Delinguency Rate (Past Due Outstanding Loan Balance divided by Portfolio Balance);

$93,965/ $1,056,995 = 8.9% Delinquency Rate (41 Loans)

ILDC Funds Available to Lend: $181,440

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

-12-



2025 - 2026 ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Board Committees & Officers

Executive Committee

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

ECIDA/RDC
7 Board members, Chair - Brenda McDuffie (Chair) Chair - Brenda McDuffie (Chair)
President & CEO, as Vice Chair - Richard Lipsitz Vice Chair — Denise Abbott

specified in By-Laws

County Executive - Hon Mark
Poloncarz

County Executive - Hon Mark
Poloncarz

Mayor Buffalo — Hon. Christopher
Scanlon

Mayor Buffalo — Hon. Christopher
Scanlon

Hon. Joseph Emminger (Chair, RDC
Loan Committee)

Hon. Joseph Emminger (Chair, RDC
Loan Committee)

Glenn Nellis - (Representing the
Finance & Audit Committee)

Glenn Nellis - {(Representing the
Finance & Audit Committee)

Ken Schoetz (Chair, Loan Write-Off)

Ken Schoetz (Chair, Loan Write-Off
Committee)

President & CEO John Cappellino
[non-voting]

President & CEO John Cappellino
[non-voting]

Finance & Audit
Commiittee
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

At least 3 Board members
specified in By-Laws. Not less
than 3 independent members
per PAL.

3-4 Meetings a Year

Michael Szukala (Chair)

Michael Szukala (Chair)

Penny Beckwith {M&T)

Penny Beckwith (M&T)

Patrick Boyle

Patrick Boyle

Allison DeHoney

Allison DeHoney

Thomas Emmerling*

Thomas Emmerling*

Glenn Nellis*

Glenn Nellis*

Hon. Brian Nowak*

Hon. Brian Nowak*

William Witzleben (M&T)

William Witzleben (M&T)

Governance Committee
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

At least 3 Board members
specified in By-Laws. Not
less than 3 independent
members per PAL.

1-2 Meetings a Year

Brenda McDuffie* (Chair)

Brenda McDuffie* (Chair)

Thomas Baines

Thomas Baines

Zague Evans

Zaque Evans

Hon. John Gilmour

Jackie Hall

Tyra Johnson*

Tyra Johnson

Hon. Brian Kulpa

Hon. Brian Kulpa

Hon. Christopher Scanlon

Ken Schoetz*

Ken Schoetz*

Hon. Taisha St. Jean Tard*

David State

David State

*Board members who fill seats required by By-laws
Nominating Committee Approved Date — April 1, 2005 Board Approved Date — April 23, 2025

-13-




2025 - 2026 ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Board Committees & Officers

Loan Committee
ECIDA/RDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

By-Laws specify no more
than 5 members of the
Policy Committee plus 2
City members and 1
County member

6-12 Meetings a Year

Hon. Joseph Emminger
{Chair)

Hon. Joseph Emminger
(Chair)

Denise Abbott

Denise Abbott

[City 2] Rebecca Gandour

Patrick Boyle

[Other] Nancy LaTulip

[City 2] Rebecca Gandour

[County 1] David McKinley
{Community Bank N.A.)

[Other] Nancy LaTulip

[Other} Michael Taylor
(Pursuit Lending)

[County 1] David McKinley
{Community Bank N.A.)

[City 1] Royce Woods (Evans
Bank)

Hon. Brian Nowak

Hon. Taisha St. Jean Tard

[Other] Michael Taylor
(Pursuit Lending)

[City 1] Royce Wooads (Evans
Bank)

Loan Write-off Committee
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

At least 3 Board
members specified in
By-Laws

1 Meeting a Year

Ken Schoetz*(Chair)

Ken Schoetz*(Chair)

Penny Beckwith (M&T)

Penny Beckwith (M&T)

Tyra Johnson*

Tyra Johnson*

Brian Nowak*

Brian Nowak*

William Witzleben (M&T)

William Witzleben (M&T)

Compensation Committee
ECIDA

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

No by-law requirement

1-2 Meetings a Year

Hon. Mark Poloncarz (Chair)

Hon. Mark Poloncarz (Chair)

Rev. Mark Blue

Denise Abbott

Michael Hughes

Rev. Mark Blue

Richard Lipsitz

Brenda McDuffie

Brenda McDuffie

Hon. Timothy Myers

Ken Schoetz

Ken Schoetz

Nominating Committee
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

No by-law requirement

1 Meeting a Year

Hon. Mark Poloncarz (Chair)

Hon. Mark Poloncarz (Chair)

Rev. Mark Blue

Dr. Lavonne Ansari

Zaque Evans

Rev. Mark Blue

Richard Lipsitz

Brenda McDuffie

Ken Schoetz

Ken Schoetz

*Board members who fill seats required by By-laws
Nominating Committee Approved Date — April 1, 2005 Board Approved Date — April 23, 2025

-14-




2025 - 2026 ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Board Committees & Officers

Policy Committee
ECIDA/RDC

Current Committee Members

Proposed Committee Members

At least 3 Board members

specified in By-Laws

10-12 Meetings a year

Richard Lipsitz* (Chair)

Denise Abbott (Chair)

Denise Abbott A.). Baynes
Hon. April Baskin Rev. Mark Blue*
A.). Baynes Zaque Evans

Rev. Mark Blue*

Gregory Inglut

Hon. Byron Brown

Richard Lipsitz

Zaque Evans

Susan McCartney

Gregory Inglut

Brenda McDuffie*

Susan McCartney

Glenn Nellis

Brenda McDuffie*

Hon. Brian Nowak

Glenn Nellis Peter Petrella
Laura Smith Hon. Christopher Scanlon
David State Laura Smith
Lavon Stevens David State
Paul Vukelic Lavon Stevens
Current Officers Proposed Officers
OFFICERS ECIDA | RDC ILDC ECIDA | RDC ILDC
Chair Brenda McDuffie | Hon. Mark Brenda McDuffie Hon. Mark Poloncarz
Poloncarz
Vice Chair Richard Lipsitz Denise Abbott
President & CEO John Cappellino John Cappellino
Vice President Mollie Profic, Beth Q’Keefe Mollie Profic, Beth O’Keefe
Treasurer Mollie Profic Mollie Profic

Assistant Treasurers

Jerry Manhard, Atiga Abidi, Daryl
Spulecki

Jerry Manhard, Atiga Abidi, Daryl Spulecki

Secretary

Beth O’Keefe

Beth O’Keefe

Assistant Secretaries

Jerry Manhard, Carrie Hocieniec

Jerry Manhard, Carrie Hocieniec

OTHER DESIGNATED Designated Positions Designated Positions
POSITIONS

Chief Financial Officer Mollie Profic Mollie Profic
Accounting Manager Atiga Abidi Atiqa Abidi

Chief Lending Officer Jerry Manhard Jerry Manhard
Contracting Officer Mollie Profic Mollie Profic
(required in Property

Dispaosition Policy)

Electronic Records Brian Krygier Brian Krygier

Retention Officer

Ethics Officer
{required in Conflict of
Interest Policy)

John Cappellino

John Cappellino

FOIL Officer

Robbie Ann McPherson

Robbie Ann McPherson

FOIL Appeals Officer

John Cappellino

John Cappellino

Human Resources Officers

Mollie Profic, Pat Smith

Mollie Profic, Pat Smith

Non-electronic Records

Retention Officer

Carrie Hocieniec

Carrie Hocieniec

*Board members who fill seats required by By-laws
Nominating Committee Approved Date — April 1, 2005 Board Approved Date — April 23, 2025

-15-




O

public infrastructure on Renaissance
Commerce Park with another nearly

RENAI s SANCE $12,000,000 planned for future projects as
CO M M E RC E PAR K descrlbed above INDUS HRUAL LAND DEVELOPMER T CORPCEATION

Project Description

In 2021, the ILDC executed a Purchase Sale Agreement (PSA) with Tecumseh Redevelopment for an
additional 90 acres of land (Phase 2 Purchase) on Renaissance Commerce Park (RCP), which includes a
parcel (Parcel #1) that is partially encumbered by the South Buffalo Railway Company (SBR) rail line.
The contract contemplates a “phased” closing process meaning that there are several closing dates for
the various parcels involved in the transaction. The Phase 2b (Parcel #1) closing is conditioned upon
relocation of the rail tracks, with the mutual cooperation of Tecumseh, SBR, and ILDC, to allow full

redevelopment of the 40-acre parcel.

A significant portion of Parcel #1 is encumbered with railroad facilities owned, operated, and
maintained by SBR, which is approximately 19,000 feet of railroad tracks, together with bridges and
other facilities at the site (Railroad Facilities). SBR currently uses its WYE Yard, located on Parcel #1,
to store customer rail cars in the short and long term. The current placement of the Railroad Facilities
makes it impossible to derive economic benefit from the parcel, including attracting private investment
to create capital investment and jobs on the acreage.

To induce the ILDC’s acquisition and redevelopment of the parcel, and to preserve SBR’s business
operations in and around the site, including serving existing and potential new customers at the property,
the Railroad Facilities and underlying easements need to be relocated to an agreed upon site.

Tecumseh has agreed to convey the Relocation Parcel, the POCO Yard (west of Parcel #1 — see map
below), to SBR at no cost to facilitate the relocation of Railroad Facilities and remove encumbrances

from Parcel #1 for future development by the ILDC.

Project Status - Environmental Review

In October 2023 the ILDC Board of Directors approved a contract with C&S Companies (C&S) to
conduct the design and engineering of the WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project. Over the past 18 months
C&S has worked with the ILDC and the WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project working group on
conducting the various components of the design and engineering process with an anticipated
completion of this phase slated for late this spring or early summer.

One of the major components of the design and engineering phase is the environmental review of the
project via the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act process (SEQR). The SEQR process
for the WYE Yard project has been underway for several months and is near competition after the
Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) comment period for involved agencies closed earlier this
month. The final step in the process is a determination by the lead agency, in this case the ILDC Board
of Directors, based on a review of the EAF parts 1, 2 and 3.

Staff Recommendation

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 » ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

-16-



The ILDC staff has reviewed Parts 1, 2 and 3 of
the EAF and related documents and materials
RENAISSANCE and believes that the project will result in no
COMMERCE PARK significant adverse environmental impacts thus =~ A A&7~ W/
warranting issuance of a negative declaration

under the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR).

Requested Actions

Seeking approval from the ILDC Board of Directors to issue a negative declaration under SEQR on
behalf of the ILDC as lead agency for the WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project.

Project Map

0t r 402 200 @_2
SCALE: 1 INCH = 400 FEET

a SCALE IN FEET

{ppproximate)

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

-17-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
Wye Yard Relocation Project

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
Poartion of 2303 Hamburg Turnpike (NYS Route 5), Buffalo, NY. See Attached Figure 1

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

The proposed project consists of the deconstruction and relocation of a rail bed and tracks. The existing rail bed and tracks are located east of the
proposed project site adjacent to NYS Route 5. The proposed rail bed and tracks will be located adjacent to existing track south of the solar installation to
provide an expansion of the existing service. The project relocates rail which provides site flexibility for future project opportunities closer to NYS Route 5
while preserving the necessary rail infrastructure in the area.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor:
Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)

Telephone: (716) 856-6525

E-Mail: jcappell@ecidany.com

Address: 95 Perry Street

City/PO: pyfralo

State: NY

Zip Code: , 4203

Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role):

John Cappellino, Executive Director

Telephone: (716) 856-6525

E-Mail: jcappeli@ecidany.com

Address:
95 Perry Street
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Buffalo NY 14203
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 716-856-0599
Tecumseh Redevelopment, Inc. (Contact Tom Forbes, Roux, Inc) E-Mail: tforbes@rouxinc.com
Address:
2588 Hamburg Turnpike, Suite 300
City/PO: Buffalo State: NY Zip Code:1 4218

Page 1 of 13

-18-




B. Government Approvals

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)
a. City Counsel, Town Board, BYes[.JNo | City of Lackawanna, Town of Hamburg (building [Spring 2025
or Village Board of Trustees permits)
b. City, Town or Village CYeswINo
Planning Board or Commission
¢. City, Town or Cyes@ANo
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies COYes¥INo
e. County agencies Y es[INo Erie County: Legislature, DEP (239m) Spring 2025
Buffalo and Erie County ILDC
f. Regional agencies CIYesINo
g. State agencies BMYesTIJNo  [NYSDEC, NYSDOT, NYSESD (funding), Spring 2025
NYSHPO (archaeological), NYSDOS
h. Federal agencies YesJNo |USACOE, US Fish & Wildlife Spring 2025
i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? b Yes[INo
ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program? YesCINo
iti. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? [ YeskZINo

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the [JYeskZINo
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?

e If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
e IfNo, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site BAYesCINo
where the proposed action would be located?

If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action CIYeskNo

would be located?

b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway; A Yes[INo
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s):
Remediaton Sites:C915199B, Remediaton Sites:C915199D, NYS Heritage Areas:West Erie Canal Corridor , Town of Hamburg BOA

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan, [JYes#INo
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s): ‘

Page 2 of 13

-19-




C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. A Yes[INo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?

Town of Hamburg: M-3 (General Industrial)
City of Lackawanna: Medium Industrial/ Heavy Industrial

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? M Yes[JNo
O YesNo

¢. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action?

If Yes,
i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Lackawanna City School District/ Frontier Central School District

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
City of Lackawanna Police Department, Town of Hamburg Police Department, Erie County Sheriffs Department

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
City of Lackawanna Fire Division, AMR West Seneca, Woodlawn Volunteer Fire

d. What parks serve the project site?
Woodlawn Beach State Park, Taggart Park

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include alt
components)? Industrial/ Transportation (rail yard)

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 657.2 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 24.2 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 657.2 acres
c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? B Yes[JNo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % 296 Units: N/A
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? CJYes ANo
If Yes,

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? CYesiANo

iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum

e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? [ YesINo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: 6 months

ii. If Yes:
e  Total number of phases anticipated
e  Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year
e Anticipated completion date of final phase month year
¢ Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13

-20-



f. Does the project include new residential uses? OYesANo
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)
Initial Phase
At completion
of all phases
g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? HAYes[INo
If Yes,
i. Total number of structures 0
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: height; width; and length
iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: 0 square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any [OYesNo
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?
If Yes,
i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water: (L] Ground water [[]Surface water streams [ JOther specify:

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations

a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? YesDNo
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging? removal of slag material
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e Volume (specify tons or cubic yards): 150,000 cubic yards

e Over what duration of time? 6 months
iti. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

see attached narrative

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials? [CJyeskANo
If yes, describe.
v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? 24.2 acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? 242 acres
vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? 26 feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? Oy esNo

ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:
see attached narrative

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment [JYespqNo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?
If Yes:
. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic
description):
Page 4 of 13

-21-



ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

iii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? OYes/No
If Yes, describe:

iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [ Yesk/No
If Yes:

e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:

»  expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:

e purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):

proposed method of plant removal:

if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? [JYeskNo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? CdYes[No
If Yes:
¢ Name of district or service area:
e Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? CdYes[INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? Oves[INo
e [s expansion of the district needed? O Yes[INo
¢ Do existing lines serve the project site? OyesCINo
ifi. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? Oyes[No
If Yes:

e  Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

e  Source(s) of supply for the district:

iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? [ Yes[[INo
If, Yes:
e Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e Date application submitted or anticipated:

e Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? OvyesANo
If Yes:

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? [JYesk/No

If Yes:

e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:
e  Name of district:
®  Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? OYes[INo
e Is the project site in the existing district? OYes[JNo
e Is expansion of the district needed? dYes[INo
Page 5 of 13

-22-




e Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? [JYes[INo

e Wil a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? Oyes[ONo
If Yes:

* Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? OYesANo
If Yes:
e Applicant/sponsor for new district:
e  Date application submitted or anticipated:
. What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point HAYes[INo
sources (i.¢. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?
If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
Square feet or 0 acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or _g57 2 acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources.see attached narrative

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.c. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
see attached narrative

e Ifto surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

e  Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? O YespANo
iv. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? A Yes[JNo
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel MYes[INo
combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify:

i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
see attached narrative

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
none

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
see attached narrative

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, OYespiNo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:

i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet Oyes[ONo
ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)

ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)

Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,O)

Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)

Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SFs)

Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)

Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13

-23-



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, CIYesANo
landfills, composting facilities)?
IfYes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [JYespINo
quarry or landfill operations?
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

Jj- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial OYespANo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply): [ Morning [ Evening [OWeekend
[J Randomly between hours of to

ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces:  Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? LvesCINo
V. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within % mile of the proposed site? [JYes[JNo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric ~ [JYes[JNo
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing [OYes[No
pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand OYeskANo
for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):

iii, Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [dYes[JNo

1. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
e  Monday - Friday: 7am-7 pm e  Monday - Friday: 2417
e  Saturday: e  Saturday: 24/7
e Sunday: ¢  Sunday: 2417
e Holidays: e  Holidays: 24/7
Page 7 of 13

-24-




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, Yes[INo
operation, or both?
If yes:
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:
Temporary construction noise will be created during the course of construction (6 months). This includes heavy equipment for earthwork and track work,

ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? O YesNo
Describe:

n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? O YesANo

Ifyes:

i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? L YesANo
Describe:
0. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? OYesANo

If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:

p- Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) OYesANo
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?
If Yes:
i. Product(s) to be stored
ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, O Yes ANo
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? [ Yes [No

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal [] Yes ANo
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

IfYes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
e  Construction: tons per (unit of time)
e  Operation : tons per : (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
e  Construction:

e  Operation:

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
e  Construction:

e Operation:

Page 8 of 13

-25-



s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? [ Yes A No

If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or

other disposal activities):

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

° Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
° Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
iii. If 1andfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [JYesp4No

waste?
If Yes:
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

ifi. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month

iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? Llyes[No
If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
O Urban Industrial B4 Commercial [ Residential (suburban) [ Rural (non-farm)
[ Forest [ Agriculture P Aquatic [ Other (specify):
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:
The surrounding land uses include a solar energy array, an existing rail yard, and light manufacturing

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.

Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)
¢ Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces g 0 0
e Forested 0 ] 0
e  Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non- 0 0 0
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
e  Agricultural 0 0 0
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)
e  Surface water features 0 0 0
(lakes, porids, streams, rivers, etc.)
e Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 0 0 0
e  Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 24.2 24.2 0
e Other
Describe:
Page 9 of 13

-26-



c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? OyeslvINo
i If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed B Yes[INo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?
If Yes,
i. Identify Facilities:
The Tinydreams Daycare at 75 Beech St. is located within 1,500 feet of the project.

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? OJYeskINo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
¢ Dam height: feet
e Dam length: feet
¢ Surface area: acres
e Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam’s existing hazard classification:

iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [ YeskANo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed? [CJYes[] No

e Ifyes, cite sources/documentation:
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin M Yes[INo
_property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?
If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:
see attached narrative

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any M Yes[] No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?
If Yes:
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site MYes[INo
Remediation database? Check all that apply:
M Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s): See attached narrative and attachment A
B Yes — Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s): C915199B, C915199D

[ Neither database
ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

See attached narrative.

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? Myes[INo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s): C915199C, C915199B, C915199D, C915199E, C915199...

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):
C915199B, C915199C, C915199D, C915199E, C915199F - closed

€915217- no action

C915198, Co15198C - acive

Page 10 of 13

-217-



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses?
If yes, DEC site ID number: C915198 (and C915198B through L) and C915199 (and C915199B through J)

Yes[INo

[ ]

e  Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement): Easements

e Describe any use limitations: commercial and industrial property uses only, aroundwater use restriction, SMP requirements

» Describe any engineering controls: Engineering controls per SMP

o Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? MYes[INo
e  Explain:

No excavation for project in areas included in easement related to Sites C915198 and C915198C. There is some work required for existing track within

Site C915199B and D, which will be performed in conformance with the site's SMP and in coordination with NYSDEG. See aftached narrative,

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? >5 feet
b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? OYesNo
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? %
¢. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Urban land 100 %
%
)
d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 5 feet
e. Drainage status of project site soils:p] Well Drained: % of site
Moderately Well Drained: % of sitt  Unknown
[ Poorly Drained % of site
f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: 0-10%: 100 % of site
[ 10-15%: % of site
[J 15% or greater: % of site
g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? L1YespANo
If Yes, describe;
h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, [JYesANo
ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? MYes[INo
If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i. :
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, MYes[INo

state or local agency?

iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

Streams: Name Smokes Creek

Classification C

°
®  Lakes or Ponds: Name Lake Erie Classification A-S
®  Wetlands: Name R2UBH, RSUBH, PUSCx, PUBHx, R2UBHx Approximate Size 19.13 (cumulative)
® Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC)
v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired OYesNo
waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:
1. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? [JYespANo
j- Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain? MYes[INo
k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain? MYes[JNo
1. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? CIyesiANo

If Yes:
i. Name of aquifer:

Page 11 of 13

-28-




m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:
white tail deer, eastern cottontait raccoon, oppossum, grey squirrels

songbirds, seagulis, crows

striped skunk, various rodent species

n. Doces the project site contain a designated significant natural community? [JYespNo

If Yes:
i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:

ifi. Extent of community/habitat:

e Currently: acres
o Following completion of project as proposed: acres
e  Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as Yes[JNo
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

Wafer Ash, Lake Sturgeon

p- Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of LIYes#INo
special concern?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing:

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? CdYespANo
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to JYespANo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 3047
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? OYespANo
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

¢. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National OYespNo
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: ] Biological Community [0 Geological Feature

ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmenta] Area? OYeskANo
If Yes:
i. CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13

-29.



e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district O YestANo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?

If Yes:
i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: [JArchaeological Site OHistoric Building or District
ii. Name:

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for MYes[INo
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archacological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? JYespANo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local MYes[INo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:
i. Identify resource: Great Lakes Seaway Trail

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.): National Scenic Byway

iii. Distance between project and resource: <1 miles.
i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers O YeskNo
Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 6667? OdYes[No

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name Thomas Voigt, AICP (C&S as agent of IDLC) Date 2/26/2025

Signature Title Planner

PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

-30-




EAF Mapper Summary Report Monday, February 3, 2025 11:08 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening tool intended to assist

£ project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental

= assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are

. answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF

| question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Afthough
the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data available to

. DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order

to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is nota

. substitute for agency determinations.

SN _’&‘f;dn:lli-

prone Kingtton M«A

o
. az |
L
Trento ¥l

r"'mm? Fochester
on ' 2 1
nildo i=w vorl

Albiany
s ANl

® 4 SouresslEsh H'ERE,_Garn'.n_ USGEE Ipterpas IIQCEEF[:{E'EI?%"’

\IJRCa:- Es dapar BAET) ESn China 4 oo Kang Esrpgeieg Esy
| Thanana WGET = OperStiesiiviap carhiesitans and the GIS
Lser Cofipierity, Esn HERE Garrin, MESYESEs ps

Pl fusirek
iB.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area] Yes
‘B.L.ii [Local Waterfront Revitalization Area] ~ Yes
C.2.b. [Special Planning District] Yes - Digital mapping data are not available for all Special Planning Districts.

Refer to EAF Workbook.

C.2.b. [Special Planning District - Name] Remediaton Sites:C915199B, Remediaton Sites:C915199D, NYS Heritage
Areas:West Erie Canal Corridor

E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Yes - Digital mapping data for Spills Incidents are not available for this
‘Potential Contamination History] location. Refer to EAF Workbook.

:E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Yes

‘Listed]

E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Yes

Environmental Site Remediation Database]

‘E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - C915199B, C915199D

‘DEC ID Number]
"E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000' of DEC Remediation Yes

Site]

E.1.h.iii [Within 2,000’ of DEC Remediation C915199C, C915199B, C915199D, C915199E, C915199F, C915199G,

Site - DEC ID] C915198, C915198C, C915198D, C915198E, C915198G, 915009, C915205,
C915199J

E.2.g [Unique Geologic Features] No

E.2.h.i {Surface Water Features] No

E.2.h.ii [Surface Water Features] Yes

E.2.h.iii [Surface Water Features] Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

E.2.h.v [Impaired Water Bodies] No

E.2.i. [Floodway] No

E.2.j. [100 Year Floodplain] Yes

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper St_31.iry Report ’



egan. WUV 1 Tan 1 uuupian) 1o
'E.2.1. [Aquifers] No

E.2.n. [Natural Communities] No

.E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species] iYes

E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species - Wafer Ash, Lake Sturgeon

Name]

:E.2.p. [Rare Plants or Animals] ‘No
E.3.a. [Agriculturai District] No
‘E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] ‘No
'E.3.d [Critical Environmental Area] No

E.3.e. [National or State Register of Historic Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Places or State Eligible Sites] Workbook.

'E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] ‘Yes
'E.3.i. [Designated River Corridor] No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Si_32.ry Report



CaS

COMPANIES®

Wye Yard Relocation Project
Tecumseh Redevelopment Inc., City of Lackawanna and Town of
Hamburg, Tax Parcels: 141.11-1-51.1 & 150.00-1-1.111

FEAF Part 1 - Additional Information

February 2025

Introduction

The following narrative contains additional information to supplement answers provided in the Full
Environmental Assessment Form (FEAF) Part | for the proposed Wye Yard Relocation Project. This

document outlines items in the order they appear on the FEAF Part 1 and is written to provide
supplemental information on any questions that may warrant further clarification.

C.2 Adopted land use plans

a. City of Lackawanna Comprehensive Plan (2016)

The City of Lackawanna’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan deems the subject property as appropriate for
mixed-use development. Within the “mixed-use corridors” land use narrative, the Plan states that
commercial storefronts and apartments are the desired development types; however environmental
easements and remaining contamination limit the allowable uses on and around the subject
property. While future vision for the area in its entirety may be a mixture of land uses, that result is
not achievable in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the extension of the existing use is a viable
option for land use at the subject property until further remediation and land use planning can be
achieved. There are no specific recommendations or strategies that target the subject site as an
inland property. The strategies and policies within the plan are focused on the waterfront areas and
the expansion of access and activation. Public comment included as an appendix to the
Comprehensive Plan illustrates the desire for the proliferation of electrical infrastructure and
increased industrial development on the subject property.

b. Town of Hamburg Comprehensive Plan (2022)

The Town of Hamburg Comprehensive Plan cites the Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA) Plan as
the driving land use policy for the subject property. The Town’s BOA that is prescribed for the subject
area is in progress and currently does not have any recommendations for land uses.

-33-



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.

Page 2

D.2 Project Operations

a.

Excavation, Mining, or Dredaing (excluding general site grading, preparation, installation of
foundations or utilities)

The proposed project includes the excavation of approximately 150,000 cubic yards of slag
material from the subject site. Slag is a waste material from the refining of metals. The slag was
produced and placed at the subject site during the operation of the former Bethlehem Steel plant.
The slag material is currently mounded on the subject site in some areas to a peak of 26 feet
above grade. Slag materials will be removed from peaks in order to maintain a consistent grade
across the proposed project area and create an even surface for the construction of the new rail

tracks.

To remove the slag, the material is chipped or grinded. Pending further environmental testing in
coordination with the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC), slag
materials are expected to be used to grade the adjacent area. Work related to excavation involving
slag materials is in conformance with NYSDEC's Division of Materials Management Program Policy
5 (DMM-5) - Management of Soils Contaminated with Technologically-Enhanced Naturally
Occurring Radioactive Materials (TENORM).

Will the Proposed Action Disturb More Than One Acre and Create Stormwater Runoff, Either From
New Point Sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of
stormwater) or Non-Point Source (i.e. sheet flow) During Construction or Post Construction

The proposed project will disturb approximately 24.2 acres of land. New impervious surfaces will
generally not be created as a result of the proposed project. The proposed expansion will use
gravel in between the tracks and therefore there will not be any sheet flow of water from the
proposed project site. All storm water runoff will remain on the project owner’s property and will
not encroach into surface waters or wetlands.

Activities that will involve soil disturbance of one or more acres must obtain coverage under the
State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) General Permit for Stormwater Discharges
from Construction Activity, succinctly referred to as the Construction General Permit (CGP). The
proposed project will be required to prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and
obtain coverage under the current CGP.

Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions,
including fuel combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?

Air emissions sources consistent with the industrial and commercial nature of the area may be
present during construction and operations. There will be locomotives used to switch rail cars
occasionally on the new tracks. There may also be occasional transfers made between rail and
trucks that will include mobile emissions sources including trucks, forklifts, loaders, portable

-34-



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.

Page 3

conveyors, etc. These activities will be occasional or as-needed as there are no current plans for
this to be an immediate operation on the proposed project site.

As construction or operations change, the project sponsor or site owner can reassess the needs
to obtain any air permitting from the NYSDEC. Initial applications for air permits typically have
their own New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (NYSEQRA) review process, in
addition to other new processes (i.e. Climate Act assessment) to ensure that the request is
protective of human health and the environment.

. Noise

Construction operations may occasionally have periods of noise that exceed existing ambient
noise levels during the hours of 7:00 AM and 7:00 PM. Construction noises will, however, be

consistent with the land uses in the immediate area.

Regular operations of the proposed project will not exceed existing ambient noise levels of the
area. There are no existing natural barriers that act as a noise barrier or screen and therefore no
barriers will be disturbed or removed by the proposed action. The area is characterized by urban
manufacturing and adjacent to a major travel corridor, therefore existing noise levels are relatively

high.

Generation, Treatment, Storage or Disposal of Hazardous Waste

The proposed action does not involve the generation, treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous
waste.

Based on an initial site characterization completed on September 23 and 24, 2024, the slag
materials are not expected to be hazardous, with only slightly elevated readings along the western
edge of the planned redevelopment area and former roadway.

In addition to slag, a portion of the proposed project is occurring on NYSDEC Brownfield Cleanup
Program (BCP) Sites C915198 (and -C and -B) and C915199B and D. In the area adjacent to NYS
Route 5, the proposed project activities include track retirement. In the track retirement area, the
rails and rail ties will be picked up and removed from the site. There is no excavation expected to

occur in this area as part of the proposed project.

In the area of Sites C915199B and D, the proposed project will include tying into existing track on
those BCP sites. Work will be performed in conformance with the Site Management Plan (SMP)
that is part of the environmental easement for that area. This may include generation of hazardous
waste during construction only that would be properly managed.

-35-



Wye Yard Relocation Project

FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.
Page 4

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site

g. Hazardous Wastes

The proposed project is located in a formerly heavy industrial area where many sites including the
project site and adjoining sites have generated hazardous waste or were used to commercial treat,
store and/or dispose of hazardous waste. Much of the project site formerly generated hazardous
waste during the former industrial activities under Bethlehem Steel. Finally, the proposed project
site owner currently generates hazardous waste. The proposed project will not impact this activity.

h. Potential Contamination History

i. The NYSDEC Spill Incidents Database was reviewed and found the following reports for the
adjoining project site. See attachment A for a Spill Incident Log Sheet.

* NYSDEC Spill Number 0104728: Bethlehem Steel Corporation, 8/2/2001. 150 gallons of

hazardous ammonia spilled due to human error. Spill Record was closed on 8/3/2001.

NYSDEC Spill Number 9812184: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Coke Ovens, 1/1/1999. 100
gallons of Kensol #61 spilled due to human error. Spill Record was closed on 1/4/1999.

NYSDEC Spill Number 0102886: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Scrub Yard, 6/15/2001. 200
gallons of Kensoil spill due to human error. Spill Record was closed on 6/18/2001.

NYSDEC Spill Number 8808085: Bethlehem Steel Corporations Coke Ovens, 1/10/1989. 50
gallons of petroleum wash oil spill due to a tank overfill. Spill Record was closed on

6/26/19809.

NYSDEC Spill Number 9100044: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Benzoil Yard, 4/1/1991. 50
gallons of petroleum waste oil spilled due to human error. Spill Record was closed on

8/12/1991.

NYSDEC Spill Number 9012909: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Coal Mixer, 3/19/1991. 500
gallons of petroleum #2 fuel oil spilled due to an equipment failure. Spill Record was closed
on 8/12/1991.

NYSDEC Spill Number 9100855: Bethlehem Steel Corporation, 4/23/1991. 800 gallons of
hazardous coal tar pitch volatiles spilled due to an equipment failure. Spill Record was

closed on 5/6/1991.

-36-



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.
Page 5

e NYSDEC Spill Number 9302394 Bethlehem Steel Corporation Coke Ovens, 5/20/1993. 30
gallons of petroleum wash oil spilled due to an equipment failure. Spill Record was closed
on 5/26/1993.

¢ NYSDEC Spill Number 9403309: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Conomos, 6/7/1994. 15
gallons of petroleum waste oil spilled due to a housekeeping error. Spill Record was closed
on 8/24/1994.

e NYSDEC Spill Number 9101522: Bethlehem Steel Corporation, 5/7/1991. 25 gallons of
petroleum muck oil spilled due to an equipment failure. Spill Record was closed on
8/12/1991.

e NYSDEC Spill Number 9101094: Bethlehem Steel Corporation Outfall, 4/26/1991. An
unknown amount of unknown petroleum substance spilled due to an equipment failure.
Spill Record was closed on 5/1/1991.

e NYSDEC Spill Number 9415961: Amadori Construction, 3/1/1995. An unknown amount of
petroleum gasoline spilled due to a tank failure.

ii. According to the USEPA’s ECHO Database, accessed on 2/26/2025, Tecumseh Redevelopment,
Inc. was subject to RCRA corrective actions at the proposed project site on 2/27/2018 for
general generator, manifest, and NYS hazardous waste generation non-compliance.

iii. The project site is within 2,000 feet of sites in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation
database:

e NYSDEC ID C915199): Site 1lI-10 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

e NYSDEC ID C9151991: Site llI-9 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

* NYSDEC ID C915199H: Site Iil-8 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

e NYSDEC ID C915199G: Site Ill-7 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

* NYSDEC ID C915199F: Site lll-6 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

e NYSDEC ID C915199E: Site IIl-5 Tecumseh Phase Iil Business Park, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

-37-



Wye Yard Relocation Project

FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.
Page 6

NYSDEC ID €915199D: Site ll-4 Tecumseh Phase lil Business Park,
Program (BCP), Classification C

NYSDEC ID C915199C: Site IlI-3 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park,
Program, Classification C

NYSDEC ID C9151998B: Site lll-2 Tecumseh Phase Ill Business Park,
Program, Classification C

NYSDEC ID C915199: Site Ill-1 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification C

NYSDES ID C915198: Site 11-1 Tecumseh Phase || Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198B Site II-2 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198C: Site 1I-3 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198D: Site 11-4 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198E: Site II-5 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198F; Site Ii-6 'l:ecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915198G: Site 1I-7 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID €915198I: Site 11-9 Tecumseh Phase Il Business Park,
Program, Classification C

NYSDEC ID C915198)J: Site 1I-10 Tecumseh Phase || Business Park,
Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915371: Brownfield Cleanup Program, Classification A

NYSDEC ID C915008: State Superfund Program, Classification 02

-38-

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup

Brownfield Cleanup



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.
Page 7

* NYSDEC ID C915205: Tecumseh Redevelopment, Inc.-Steelwinds, Brownfield Cleanup
Program, Classification C

v.  The project site is subject to institutional controls limiting property uses. NYSDEC Sites
C915198 (and related C915198B through L) and C915199 (and related C9151998 through J)
both have environmental easements recorded. Figure 3, attached, shows individual BCP Site
names and proposed project areas. The environmental easements limit the property use to
commercial and industrial uses, restrict groundwater usage, and require SMPs, among other
typical NYSDEC environmental easement requirements. The proposed project will not have
an impact on the controls in place but will need to be constructed in accordance with
easement requirements. There is no excavation planned as part of the proposed project in
areas included in easement related to Sites C915198 and C915198C. However, there is some
work required related to the existing track within Site C915199B and D, which will be
performed in conformance with that site specific SMP and in coordination with NYSDEC,
Ultimately, the proposed project will not change property use.

E.2 Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

h. Surface Water Features

The NYSDEC Environmental Resource Mapper (ERM) website indicates that the project site is located
in the vicinity of six mapped National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) wetlands, L1UBH (Lake Erie),
R2UBHx (Smokes Creek), RSUBH, R2UBH, R4SBC, PUBHx, and PUSCx.

LTUBH is classified as a permanently flooded limnetic, lacustrine body of water with an
unconsolidated bottom. R2UBHx is a permanently flooded, lower perennial riverine water with an
unconsolidated bottom and previous excavation by humans. PUBHX is classified as a permanently
flooded palustrine with an unconsolidated bottom and previous excavation by humans. PUSCx s a
seasonally flooded palustrine with an unconsolidated shore and previous excavation by humans.

Lake Erie is classified as a Class A-S waterbody and Smokes Creek is classified as a Class C waterbody.

J- 100-Year Floodplain

According to FEMA Flood Map Panel 336, a portion of the project site is within the 100-Year
Floodplain (see Attachment B). The proposed project does not create additional impervious area
and should not impact the floodplain or natural drainage patterns.

k. 500-Year Floodplain

According to FEMA Flood Map Panel 336, a portion of the project site is within the 500-Year
Floodplain (see Attachment B). The proposed project does not create additional impervious area
and should not impact the floodplain or natural drainage patterns.

-39.



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.
Page 8

0. Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Species

The United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) utilizes the Information, Planning and
Conservation (IPaC) system as a tool for streamlining the environmental review process. The IPaC
system provides a species list that identifies threatened, endangered, proposed and candidate
species, as well as proposed and final designated critical habitat, that may occur within the
boundary of the study area and/or may be affected by the proposed project. According to the
USFWS IPaC System Official Species List dated February 6, 2025 (see Attachment C), an
endangered species, the Northern Long-eared Bat (Myotis Septenrionalis) and one candidate
species, the Monarch Butterfly (Danaus plexippus), are listed with the potential to occur or be
present within the boundary of or be affected by the proposed action at the project site.
According to the IPaC system (see Attachment C), there are no critical habitats, no other Federally
threatened or endangered species, or environmentally sensitive habitat areas identified within the

project site.

Northern Long-eared Bat (Myotis Septenrionalis): The northern long-eared bat is a wide-
ranging, federally threatened bat species, found in 37 states and eight provinces in North
America. The species typically overwinters in caves or mines and spends the remainder of the
year in forested habitats.

Monarch Butterfly, (Danaus Plexippus): The monarch butterfly can be found in varying habitats,
so long as milkweed (for breeding) and flowering plants (for nectar) are present. IPAC indicates
that the proposed project does not overlap with any critical habitat for this species. The
project site is primarily a paved and impervious area with approximately 7% of the area cover
with poor quality vegetation not suitable for the presence and growth of milkweed and
flowering plants. The monarch butterfly is a proposed threatened species.

The EAF mapper automatically indicated the presence of lake sturgeon (Acipenser fulvescens) and
Wafer Ash (Ptelea trifoliata) as NYS threatened and endangered. The proposed project is not
expected to impact either species.

Lake sturgeon, (Acipenser Fulvescens): Lake sturgeon reside primarily in freshwater lakes and
river systems as bentbhic fish, occupying and feeding in bottom habitats of water bodies. The
lake sturgeon is listed as threatened at the state level and is not listed as endangered or
threatened at the federal level. Population decline due to overexploitation of stocks for caviar
and smoked flesh, blocking of migration routes for spawning due to construction of dams,
and degradation of habitat due to anthropogenic factors, e.g. pollution and channelization
are listed by the State issues facing the sturgeon. It is not anticipated that the proposed project
will impact this species.

The Wafer Ash (Ptelea trifoliata) is a small, endangered tree commonly known as “common
hoptree”. Across the State, there are only eight populations of the Wafer Ash, each with less
than 100 plants. Typical threats to the Wafer Ash include clearing and damage from deer. The

-40-



Wye Yard Relocation Project
FEAF Part 1 Add. Info.

Page 9

Wafer Ash can commonly be found in habitats surrounding railroad operations due to the
presence of gravel substrate. The identifying features include a reddish brown to grey-brown
bark and long, shiny, and dark colored leaves. The Wafer Ash has not been identified at the
proposed project site to date. During construction, the project team will make every effort to
identify and preserve the Wafer Ash if present.

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

e. Additional Archeological or Historic Site(s) or Resources

A portion of the proposed project, the track retirement area adjacent to NYS Route 5, is located
within an archeologically sensitive area. For this area of the proposed project, a previous Phase
1A Archaeological Survey was completed for areas including the project site in February 2019.
Based on the NYSHPO review of the Phase IA Archaeological Survey, they concurred with the 2019
report’s conclusions that there is very little to no potential for intact archaeological resources to
be located within the Project Site due to previous significant disturbance. In a letter dated March
15, 2019 (see SHPO project # 18PR06973), NYSHPO determined that no historic properties,
including archaeological and/or historic resources, would be affected by the Project.

NYSHPO was consulted again on February 13, 2025, and issued a Determination of No Impact on
February 18, 2025 (see Attachment D). Therefore, significant adverse impacts to historic or

archeological resources are not anticipated from the Project.

h. Scenic or Aesthetic Resources

One resource having official designation as being a publicly accessible federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource was identified within proximity of the proposed project. The Great
Lakes Seaway Trail is a 454-mile stretch of the Seaway Trail which borders Lake Erie and Lake
Ontario as well as the Saint Lawrence River. The Great Lakes Seaway Trail in New York State was
designated a National Scenic Byway in 1996. The area of the Trail in the vicinity of the proposed
project site is NYS Route 5 (see Attachment E). The proposed project would be partially visible
from the Trail; However, land uses are not changing as part of the proposed project. Therefore,
the proposed project is not expected to impact the scenic and aesthetic resources in the area.

-41-



COMPANIES

Wye Yard Relocation Project
Tecumseh Redevelopment Inc., City of Lackawanna and Town of
Hamburg, Tax Parcels 141.11-1-51.1& 150.00-1-1.111

FEAF Part 1 — Additional Information
February 2025

Figures &
Attachments

-42-



Figure 1:
Figure 2:
Figure 3:

Attachment A:
Attachment B:
Attachment C:
Attachment D:

Attachment E:

Figures

Project Location Map
Conceptual Rail Yard Expansion Plan
NYSDEC Brownfields Parcels

Attachments

NYSDEC Spills

FEMA National Flood Insurance Rate Map

US Fish & Wildlife Threatened and Endangered Species List
NYSHPO Letter of No Impact

NYS Great Lakes Seaway Trail Map

-43-



Figure 1

Project Location Map

-44-



‘NEaing SNsuad SN ‘SdN 'Yd3 ‘'SOSN 'VSYN/ILIW ‘ou} *sejBojouysaloag
‘ydeigajes ‘ulwiesn

fusbew) wopg uonnjossey ybiy sabelfia D aulRIoYg sanuNoD D
WoLWoL ‘PsT ‘ePEUED Y OUBILD 10 S A1abew| wopg uognjosay ybIH sSumoj saD _HU sagunon D
w1 50 5z0 0 BlEPEIOW UOIN|OSaY WR AeBew wg) uopnjosey ma sumo| - aullsIoyg aleig -
suonejln Aisbew) plaop SanID seg D
1w gg €0 S0
8e0'ee:L

§¢0c/vele

0k

| AR s Yl ¢ BRI A banatiepjoiumo) i
SEAZ2 RS e [EL Y —ry o 308 TR _
$i—= A ] .

=

I___i“[-'.,'.'\ui

IE1:
S mburoilpke

3

LB RN

TIEY)V7 s
e _....._,.,.41”.._:.@01.

e oW INE
.a”\—_’ V. »

e BT
AAVAPME| S




Figure 2

Conceptual Rail Yard Expansion Plan

-46-



fi—n

B Y

=== ——
. i : .M \ s
N e ——— et —— W TR



Figure 3

NYSDEC Brownfield Parcels

-48-



Lok
uoie20{3Y piea ok

Ut gL Aaur g je pajund usym
1994 009 sienba youi |

[SLF | e—— e
002"t 009  00f 0

i 4

sizteg wieiboig dnues|s payumoig '

S|R0IEG PRUUMCIE DHIASAN
€ aunby

SINVENOD

SBJ




Attachment A

NYSDEC Spill Log

-50-



Q0T EEatte] 1eli3)ew umowiun 089¢e BLISnpU}RIDISWWOY ainie4 Wawdinb3 TEET/LT/E YNNYMWIOVT F33LS WIHATHL3E 1282116
a0z uinsjonag 1usaip EVEEE A24YEA [2IRIRWWOD dunjleq ywawidinbl 66T/HOHT YNNYMYAOVT T133LS WAHFTHL3E 0%90116
0 180 T9 #10suay £04ge |ELASNpul/elaBWwa) |injied Juawdinby T66T/5T/6 YNNYMYIOYT SNIAQ-1331S WIHITHLI3E 0Ep90T6
(1] wnajolisg HO Ysem EQLEER JeuIsnpul/eplstuwon aim|ed weswdinby Lé6T/ST/6 YNNYMYAOYT SNIAO-13ALS WIHITHLIE 0EPO0L6
0 wnsjonad 1o ysem 16vee 1BlISNpU|/Ie|218WWoD Jo13 uewny 166T/6/6 YNNVMYAIV] 13318 W3HITHLIG 0519016
(sg)io whnajonad 0 ysem T86Et IEJASNpU/RDIawwio) aineg wawdinby 1661/6¢/8 VNNYMWIOVT T33LS W3HATHLIE Ty8s018
18 wnajonad 110 pasn/io a)sem 186€€ 1elasnpuiediswwoe) ainjied Juswdinby 166T/62/8 YNNYMYIOV 13318 W3HTTHLIG 85016
1} BYo Injns BEEE jelnsnpu|eiaialLey umouUn T661/8/L YANYMYNOYT YOO 1331S WIHTTHLZ8 69/£0T6
0ae winajonsd lo18n) g mgm.m {etIsnpUNeIIBWWaY umowiun T66l/62/9 YNNVAMWIOY] WV ANVL-1334S W3H3HL3E <66T0T6
0E 1euR1ely SNopIezeH  SajuejoA yoNd Je) 1eas BLEEE 1BUISNpU|ARI2Is W0y 2injieq Juawdinby T661/12/S YNNYMYIOV] NIAQ 310013318 WIHITHLIG SZ02016
=14 wnsonad 110 jonw Z9vee 1BHISnpul/fealawwon aunyed awdinby 1661/L/5 YNNYMWIOV] HONONW-T33LS H138 2¢s1016
5S¢ 1el4a1k}y snopiezeH  sajnejoA yaid 1ex1e0d GLEEE lelisnpul/ieaiawiuiagy aurnied Juawdinby T661/5/9 YNNYMYIOY] "Q0Hd AG-1334S WIHATHLZG VEVIOTE
0 wnajonad wnajosed umowiun eseee 1EMISNpU|/RIdIaWWOY aine4 wawdinb3 T661/9T/7 YNNVMYIOVT TP 1Y4LN0-133LS HiTg PE0T0TE
008 IEUIBY SNOPJEZEH  53113810A 403Id s€) |03 YOEEE 1BIHSNPU|/RI31aWIe D) aimje4 udwidhnby 166T/82Y YNNYMYAOV Y1 WO~ 14318 H138 S4B00TE
14 wnajonad 110 pasn/)io a1sem oggee 1BLISNPUJ/BIIRWWO0Y ainjies uswidinby T66T/ST/Y YNNYMYAOYT 1331S WIHITHL38 SLS00T6
0§ 12410 Je1 TISEEE IBHISNpUy/ g 1auLey 10413 uewny [661/1/v YNNYMYAOV VauY dg-1331S WIHITH138 £000016
05 wnajonad 110 pasnAj0 a1sem oevee 1eHIsNpu|/e[dIswWWog Jou3 uewny 166T/T/7 YNNVAMYIOV QYVYANOZNIE-1331S HL3d ¥r00016
00§ wnajoliad 110 18Ny Z# ZAVEE 1ELASNRU|/e)8WuI0Y ainyie Juswdinb3 1661/8L/¢ YNNVMYAOYT HIXIW IVOD-1331S H134 6062106
ST |EUEY SNOpIeZEH  sa|ne|oA yalid Jel jeod [4%3%5 1Blasnpuleiswwoey Byig T66T/71/E YNNYMYA IV 1331S WIHITHL38 9642106
0 1ejlaie snopiezey ploe onogien pisee |BLISApUIARID IBWILI0D ainjie 4 juawdinby 166T/6/E YNNYMYIOV] PHN-1331LS WIHATHi3E TEJZL06
0 1eilaley snopiezey Eluowwe visee 1BHlisnpujelniawwoy ainjie4uawdinby 1661/6/€ YNNYMWAOY PHN-1331S WIH3ATHL38 TE9CT06
a0z |Bliaie|y SNopiezey  so)ejoA yald Je) jE0d BOEEE [BLISNpUj/ERIBWLW0Y anje Juswdinby 1861/5/€ YNNYMYADY HYL TYOD-133US WIHITHLIE BSYZT06
V] unesjonad 1o ysem 9518¢ lelisnpuisejasawwon aJnjjed wawdinb3 066T/0T/01 YNNYMYAOV 3318 WIHITHLIE ££52008
G4 wnsjaiiad 1O Pasn/Io sisem S51EE 1Blisnpu/ Rl wL0D sniey Wwawidinby 086¢/01/0T VNNVAMYIOVT 73348 WAKITHLEE LBGL006
0 wnsjoliag wnajonad umowjun ZS0EE umowyun 313 iV umousun 0661/82/9 YNNYMYADYT T33LS NIWITHL3E 085€£006
aot wnsjonad 110 pasanio ajsem oveee IEHISNPURIdISWWED) I DAV 1340 066T/£2/S VYNNYMYAOVT T33LS WIHATHLZE FAUTAS
02 unatoned 110 pasnylo a1sem 0toee JeMISnpuiAEISWWOD aInjied uswidinby 0661/LT/8 YNNVMYAOYT T3S WIHIHLIE 8581006
] HNOo yse Ay Z2oee 1eLISNpUARIZIaWIWO) U3 DI HmaLnsun 0686T/08/¢ YNNYMYAOY] T133LS WIHIHL3E 8601006
{sa) oot uinaouag wnajonad umouun 220¢E eLasnpujeRlawwen I DI umounun 066T/0E/7 YNNVMWYIOVT 13318 W3HTTHLIE 8601006
0oL wns10484 110 pasnya aisem 9EDEE JBLSARUI/B|DI8ULILI0D 10453 uBLINY 066T/8/7 VANYMYIOY 13318 W3HIIHL3E §€00006
05 wnajosnad 19s3Ip 90vee leisnpujfealswwoy {0dij uewny 0861/82/¢ YNNVMYIOV1 10 Z1309/13318 W3HITHL38 £reT168
05 wnajonad 110 pasny|o ajsem ZE6CE Bisnpu|Ael2Iaiwog THHBAD HuE| 06BL/82/C YNNYMYI OV 133LS WAT3HL3E T62T168
0 800 1ElBIEW UMOu3UN {T628 1eLIsnpu|eldIswwWey sjeleqnaq 06BT/1T/C YNNVAMYIOV] 1d QD - 13318 WIHITHLIIA GSZI168
00t EiEbble] \ELalew umotnjun TEEEE {BLISnpU(/ e B WIWas d0113 uewing 086Y/9T/C YNNVMYIOV] 13316 WAHATHL8 0960168
g winajonad o 1anj g4 vEREE 1eIsnpu|elBswwe ) 1013 uewny 636T/2C/1T YNNVMYIOVT AIQ 3%00-1331LS W3HITHL3d L7EB068
L4 wnajoiag wn3)ausd umousun VEHZE BSNpul/ienawwe ] EILEERLA] INHEAD HuE] 6361/22/11 YNNYMYIOV] AIG 3A00 T33LS WATIHIAG S8EB068
0 |BLale SNOPIBZEeH  Sa]1e|0A Yold Je1|eod 2314 BLishpujeRswwon 193 3V 130 Hue) 686T/2Z/TT YNNYMYADYT "AIA 3N03 1331S WI13HA3g 48£8068
UoE 18U} SnopieZeH  Sajnejon Yaid 1€y |e0o E£9ZE JIISNIP UL/ (D10 THHBAG Rue ) BRET/VE/S YNNYMYIOV] ._mmp.w.Im.Im_,._.:,Em 831068
L wnajohad wnaj0.33d umouyun 0eTEe 1eHISNpUIRIaIRWWCD aimyed Juswdinby 686T/21/G VYNNYMYXOYT ._mw.rw Z,mrm._IEm 0Zrioes
0g uinljonag 110 Ysem 5892¢ feLIsnpugARIdRWWo Y aunyie Juewdinby 686T1/9%/1 VNNYMYNOV) T13HLS WIRITHLIE 0828088
05 wnajonag 110 ysem §89z¢ 1BLISNpU|/RdBWWeD {80 que) 686T/0T/1T YNNYMYIOV SN3AQ 30013315 Hi3a 5808088
Q5T IELIBIR} SNOPJIEZRH  $31nRI0A Y3)d L) {E0S GLSZE |B|NSARUL/RINISUWOT) 10413 UeWng 8861/¢/21 YNNYMYADY] INGD /13318 WIHIHIIY 05€2088
0008 wnajonad wnajenad umouyun 7a=145 1ELISNpU|/1 I3 WWoD umowiun £86T/2T/S YNNVMWYIOYT 13318 W3HTTHL3E VEI10L8
0 wnajonad 110 ysem sLeze {BNSNpU B WWo) LMOURLN LB6L{CY/S VNNYMYAIVT TAALS WIHITHL3E P611048
g wineaiied aunosed 8641E 1etsnpuineewwWog a1mjed juey £LBET/0T/T YNNYMYHOVT 13318 WIHITHL3E 059098
> 1BYI0 adpmis jejeL TELTE BIAYBA |RIDIBUILINY alnjie wal n.:.sm 9BBL/6/2T YNNVYMYHOYT TE31S WAHTIHL3] 045098
00T Qo 1EHBIBU UMOLXUN wite BlAsnpujnelIswWe) A33d0 SIAOWS aunjie4 uawdinby 986T/H/TT YNNYMWIOY] T3S WIAHTTHLIE 905098
0 wnajonag aunosed VELIE 1BLISNpU|/RID1IBWINY 2Imied 158 jue] S86T/E/6 YNNYMWIOY 13318 WAHATHL3E 179£098
{1e8) Qpuend  Aywegjepejey aWeN 1e2)E N 3eQq 35010 alnosg Apoqsayem 102e4 Supnqinuon seqnds Aneaoy alweN Aynioed weidold 1aquny ids

-51-



[i14 wrnajaiag 018Ny ZH# 1625¢ 1BISNpuARIIBWWOD umouwiun G66T/1/6 YNNYMYIOV] TIIW ¥¥8-133LS WAHIATHLIS SLLLOGE
Lt wingjonag eany g4 ETEPE 1E7) peojEY LpauRun S66T/TE/L YNNYMPADYT 13318 WIHITHLI3E LPES0S6

S wnajonad 1o 19Ny Z# Z16vE 1ej) peoljjey usmounun S66T/TE/L YNNYMWYIOV] 13318 WAHTHL3E 89£5056
74 1eUSIBW SNOPIBZEH  SANEI0A Y d Je) jeo3 L06vE |BLSNpUeIBWWoD NBAC) HUE] S681/1/L YNNYMYH YT MNVL UVI-AOHINT H138 LvSr056
00T wnajonad winajosnad umouyun vL6YE 1BLASAPU|/R2I3WWeD ainjley swdinbg S661/6T/9 YNNYMYHOVT T331S WIHITHLIIE 116£0%6
SL wnajonag uinaonsd umousun E00SE JeUISNPU|/RISIB LU0 UL b S66L/61/9 YNNVMWIOV] NG 0D 133LS WIHITHI3E T9EE0S6
T winajonad auosed ogsre al2iyan JeBuassey uspIoay e} S661/6/S YNNVAYIOVT 1331S WIHITIHLIE 8991056
oz el Jonbyp aproyd ST6pE 1eLIsSnpu| 1380 .wb._u,_m.._.m._wfn__‘:ww 5661/8/5 YNNYMYAOV T 13318 WIKFTHL3E 5651056
g wnajonad 110 pasnyio aisem CELVE S10IBA 1EIDIBWWaYD ainyeqiuawdinby SE6T/92/T YNNVMYIOV] ONdL ald M33LS WAHIHLIG S0ZYive
(5910 wna|onag 110 Jnneiphy 8LV BD[HBA 121040LUWOD ainjied wawdinby $661/92/1 YNNYMYIOYT ONYL Q1D /1334S WIHATHLIE S02rIv6
0ST |BLBIEW Snopieze jozuaq S408¢ BlIsnpUlejlswwon ainiej uswdinby S66T/TT/T YNNYMWDIOV] ADYU3INIA2LS WAHTTHLIE £8SETIYE
0 1el1B)e}y Snopiezey elowue 80LvE {BHiSNpUiNEIRIMWMI0Y ainye4 Emsn_m.utm SE6L/L/T VNNYMYIOVT 13318 W3HFTH13g SLEETVE
0T |EU8}EW SNOPIRZEH  SalNeoA yoyd Je1jeod 189v¢ 1elisnpu|/iejolswwoy aned juewdinby ve61/8/2T YNNYMYAOV] N3AQ 3HQ0-1331S WIHITHL3E Q00216
) unsjonagd wnajonad umouyun T99ve 1BHISNpUIARDISWWIOY aljied wewdinby vmmw\vmu\ﬂ; YNNVAMYAOY 13348 WIHITHL38 HSTLLYG
002 winegoiad 10 834 uou L9LYE |BtIsnpul/eIsWoe) ainjled wawdinbg wwwﬂ\m\ﬂﬁ YNNYMYIOV] 133LS WIHITHLIE P8ITIVG
1} B3RO 31B/INS WniuoLuwe 1Zove |ELISNBU/ARIDIBWIWe) whd.am.mw:wEnﬁvm PE6L/IT/OT YNNYMWIOYT AQYIANINIILS WAHIIHI38 LBIEOVE
0001 wnsjonag loysem L6SPE letisnpui/ie|siewwa) EICEENa] aun)jey u:wEn_:um V661/91/6 YNNYMWAOV 10 HSYM-ADHINI WIHITHL3E B66620v6
4 jelately Snoplezey  sajiejon yayd 1es 1209 265YE A3ML quey 100 PEET/ET/E VNNYMWAOV ADNYL-ADHANA WIHTHLIG 8582016
oy wnejoiad 1o 2nnesphy ZELVE 1eHISNpul/eRIaWwwWoy ane4 awdinby VeeT/SIL YNNYMYIOV] 13318 WIHTTHL3E ESvare
0000t wnajoned 1O Sineipky S0ESE 1BINSNPUY/ B IBWUWOY gﬁ%ﬁﬁw VeeT/TH. VNNYMYAOVT 408-13318 WIHIIHL38 LE6VS0P6
001 By NBJINS Wwinjuouliue 8ELVE 1etIsSnpulfeRIBWWeD ainjie] wswdinby Y661/92/9 YNNVYMYAOYT 133LS W3HTH134 9ZLYove
0z 1eU31el Snopieze  $813€10A Yod 483 803 TSLVE 1BIRSNRU/|BIIBWILI0Y N840 Huey PeBT/vE/S YNNYMYXOY 13318 W3R THLAE 08tvove
St wnaonad 110 pasnyjia alsem 0LSPE eiisnpuleidBwwWoy Buidasyasnon P661T/4/8 YNNYMYIOY] SOWONOD-T314S HI3g BOEEOVE
0S winsjosad 1858)p LLVPE 2IYRA 1813wWaT ainjie4 Juswdinby VE6T/0E/S YNNYMWDI OV 13318 W3HIHLIE 16vZ0re
002 1BL31e|y Snopleze  $3)1EJ0A Yayid et 120d LLVPE leuisnpujaelalawwog ain)ie4 Juswdinby vE6T/02/5 YNNYMYIOYT 13318 WIHITHL38 88¥20v6
ol IBL2R snoplezeH  sajhejoa youd teyjeoa Sobye el asnpulie|alatig QJW_M“._ wawdnby P661/5/5 YNNYMYIOV1 13318 WIHITHLIIG TTLT0v6
ore EEL o] 21R/INs Wnowwe 00pre lelisnpulelnlswwon IE:m dUewny N PE6T/5/E YNNYMYAOVT N3AO 3400-1331LS W3H3THI3E vieviee
o tinajonagd (0 Ysem LEEWE 1BISNPUIARIIIBWILIOT TYNVI YNNYMYNOVT aimey awdinb PEET/TT/T YNNYMWIOW 13348 WIHITHL3g LSOETES
14 wnajonad 110 pasNAio aysem LBEVE I1BLIsnpuelaswon TYNYD YNNYAMYAOY] ainjied uswdinby veBT/1e/T VYNNYMWIOV] 13318 WAHITHL38 £LS9ETES
o WIN3jo11a,4 10 ysem FBEVE 1BLISNPUI/IB 23O IHHSAQ Yug L VE6T/SHT YNNYMYAOYT 13318 WAH31H138 9bYeELES
14 uinajolad winatoiad umousun Tgeve eishpulnedewwo) liIH3AQ jueL Ye61/ST/e VNNVYMYIOY] 13318 WIHITHL3g OPYETES
feano uinsjoliag G ysem 98Lve |BLIShpU R0 sJnifeq Juswidinby V661/6Z/T YNNYMWYIOY T 133148 WIHATHL38 LL2TE6
See wnsjoiiad 1o pasnAle aysem 98LYE BUISNpUNBRISWILIOD ainjie4 Juswdinbg VYEET/62/T YNNYMWYIOVT 13318 WIHIHLIE CLITTES
oot winaliad 110 PasnAIo a1sem OOEPE 1BLIShpL{/elatwing 2unjie] wadinby P661/82/T YNNYMTHOVT 1331S WAHTTHL3S LILZTED
£ 1BURIBI SnapiezeH  Salnejoa youd Jey 1eoa T9eve 1BLASNPU|ABIISWWOD 1043 uewny £66T/2T/0T YNNYMVAOYT “1331S WIHTTHL38 TIre0ee
0 18410 islemysem 05ZPe 1BHISNPL{/1e1IawwWos NiHBAD HueL £66T/LZ/6 YNNYMWIDY] 3348 WIHIHL3E .._.m.m.ncmm.

Q 180 - g v20se JBLISNpU}/edIsWWOD ainjled uswdinb3 £661/82/8 YNNYMYIIV] ‘d409 13318 W3H3THL38 §5690¢6
o€ wnejonayd 110 ysem SLive 1BUISNPUj/BRIBWWGY E::mmp«..‘_mﬂ:z._m_‘sum 661102/ YNNYMYI IV SN3AO IHOO-133LS HI38 v6EZ0L6
0s |ELiBJe Y SNOPIEZEH  S31RJ0A Yod Jel |eod B2T0vE jelisnpuljesiswwogy mm:__mu wawdjnb3y £661/82/2 YNNYMYNOV] SHNYL HYL-1331S WIHITHL3E Treetes
LT wnajesag 110 ysem BT0FE 1BISNpU|gjIB MWD umouyun £EBT/92/2 YNNVMYYOW TI3LS WAHTIHLE Z81ETZE
ST B0 191EMBISEM 9Z0re 1BLISNpU|/RIZIBWIWED »uo £661/02/2 YNNVAMYY OV PAOD -133LS WIHITHLIA 800€TTE
o1 wnajonad wnajoaad umouun 600vE BIIsnpu/jeIIsWwa 2unje4 wswdinby £66T/9/2 YNNVMWIOVT 13318 WaHITHLIG SPa2lee
0§ wnajoliad 140 pasN/10 a1sem DBEEE 1euIsnpulNeswwon aunyeq uswdinby £66T/L/T YNNVYMWIOYT AYILLYE 8-133US WIHITHIIE 9251126
0ot wnaejcnag Ho ysem 186EE 1BJISAP U/ B0 aunjied wawdinby £66T/P/T VYNNVAMYAOY] 1O HSYM-1331S WaHIHL38 £SE1126
00s2 unaganag 1o ysem T86EE 1BLISNpU}/BIBILWOY B o) CEET/LT/B YNNYMYIOVT N3AQ IN0OD 13ALS WIHATHLIE Y£L950C6
fsq1)0 winaionag 110 pESN/li0 3)1SEM {86¢£T IBHIShp Ul IR isWWe S ainjjed uswdinby ZE6T/T/L YNNYMWIOY] 43QHVIIY-1331S WIHITHIZA Lyyroze
00z wn31013d wnajonad umouwyun 908£€ 198597 EIEERLS] alelaqneq 2661/82/Y VNNYMYIOWT dIS I¥0a/W3IHITHI3g 0801026
05 13y1g 19 #josuay A |eLISNPUI/ .08 WW0Y ainyjey juausdinby Ze6L/LT/Y YNNYMYAOVT 13318 WIH3THL38 LEP00LE
("1e8) fipuend  Ajwedepajeyy sWeN jepaiep a1eQq 950)n aanog Apoqiaiem 103984 Suninqgpiucy ajeqqids Anesoy awep An)19e4 welSoid 1aQWnN J1dg

-52-



08 1elale|y snoplezey ejluowuwie B3LGE felsnpujneldswwog aunyied uswdinb3 LBBL/TETT YNNYMYIDV 1331 W3HIH13g 8.60/6
ot 210 Jaiemalsem E5L5E TelasnpuBEwED 3in)ie4 wawdinb3 LEBT/LTITT YNNYMYIOW] 3318 WIHATHLI3E TESEO0LE
05 [BUsIEl Shopleze  sejijejoa yold iej jeod £6£58 eMISnpul/eRIBWWaY aunjle4 wuswdinbg L661/9/1T YNNVMYXOV TAILS WIHATHLIE 0916026
01 |eUsIR) SHOPIEZEH  SSinejoA Yyoyd 18} jead /58 1eLISNPUI/|BIIBLIWBD aimte wawdinby L66T/PT/0T YNNVYMYIOYT 13318 WIHITHL3E S8480L6
0 wn3o4ag o1ani g# 1elISNpU|/IBIIIBWW0D umauxun LEBL/PT/S YNNVYMWIOYT 73318 W3IHITHL3Ig 1561046
0z Buyio 1s1emalsem Z0L5E 1BIHsSNpU|/jRI3I3WW0 ] ainje 1studinb3 LB61/8/S YNNVYMYADVT SNOH dWNd 13318 WIHITHiIg S69T0LE
A B0 1elalell umousun Trase 1BUIsnpu|/RRIBWWOY aine] wawdinby LE6T/TTY YNNYMYIOVT 13318 W3HITHL3g 2680046
52 1BliBIEJy SNOpP.IRZEH ElUoiiwe 18440 1eUIShpuj/ejapwwo) e uswdinby L66T/92/8 YNNYMYDIOVT T33LS W3HITHL34 LOEPLSG
0001 Y10 T9 #10s09% L265¢ |BlIshpujeRIBilwWog Jouig uewiny L66T/IT/E YNNYMYAIOV] 1331S WIHITHL3a SLEVTO6
oog B0 lajemalsem SEPSE 1EHMISNPUL/RI2I3LILOY A334D T3asvig ainjie g uRwdinby LEBT/E2/C YNNVMYAOVT d400 13318 WaHITHLIg TELETO6
00021 1Be snopiezeH  sajne|oa yayd Je11eod 2oL8¢ IBLIsnpujeIswwon /NVO dIHS YNNYMVYOY  anjieduswdinby L86T/1/2 YNNYMYIOVT 13318 WIH31H139 0862196
# wnajoiag 110 pasSN/io dlseMm yovse 1eHISNpL/RII8WIL0D ainje4 Juswidinby LEGT/TE/T YNNYMYAOVT 3318 WaHITHL38 LEGTT96
G |BUBIEW snopiezer  saj|jejoa youd se11e0D LGPSE 18430 “A09 ‘lEuOiEONP] |EUOlININSY| alnye4 Juswdinby L66T/12/T YNNYMY OV NIAQ IHN0T-1331S WIHITHLIE 0152196
{0z giltle] T9 #10suey 6865¢ (B R ETTVTE e 10113 Uewrnyy L66T/BT/T YNNYMVAOYT AHIAOI3H TOZNIE WAHITHLIE S5vZ196
S winajoliad 18s8lp 6EPSE lelisnpujejdsewoe) 10113 uewiny L6ET/6/T YNNYMYAOVT 13318 WIHATHL3E CETTI96
52 Eiitie] JEL BEPSE 1eUISNpU|/|RIdIB WL B4 udwdinby 966T/91/2T YNNYMYAOYT T33LS WAHATHLI3E ORETT96
S 1Bl SNOPIeZEH  Sa)le1oA yoyd Jeyjeod oTrse IBlISNpul/eawwWe) ainjjeg uawdinby 966T1/6/CT YNNYMYADOVT W3S WIHTTHLIE 1601196
o wnajonsd wnaonad umouyun SLESE 1BHISNpui/ielodwwoy AFTHD SINOMWS umownun 866T/L/TT VYNNYMPAIOV] T33LS WIHTAIHLIE 2886096
05T g0 1a)Emalsem 0LEsE lBlIsnpuy/ediauiwo) aunlie4 yuawdinb3 9B6T/6C/0T YNNYMWIOV] TA31S WIHITKLIE 8L76096
T EElH o] T #108U8y g95e5e 1BlsnpU|/e|slswwng saniied Juawdinby 966T/SE/OT YNNYMYHOY 133LS WIH3THI38 VLEGOSE
00g W0 ie} £eese 1elisnpu|jeniswwon ainjieq uswdinb3 966T/L/0T YNNYMYAOYT 2P =133LS WAHITHIIG ¥6£8096
] wnsjolad ™ ESESE 1BINSNPU|/eidawwo) ainjje4 uswdinby Q66T/L/0T YNNYMYADIVE YA ~133LS WAHITHLIIE 76E8096
0 winsoliad wnajoad umouyun 1BLISNpU|/eIdIsUWoD umouyun 9661/02/6 YNNYMYIOV 13318 WIHITHL3A 98£L096
51 unaionad HO8Ng 24 PEESE BLISNPUINEISISWWeD Qunjjed wawdinby 966L/p1/6 VNNYMYADYY 133LS WIHIHLZ4 (1fA=Fav}: T
o1 wnajanad 110 2fineipAy 99ESE 3)24YBA 1ejIBWIWOD aunjje awdinby 9661/08/8 YNNYMYIOVT 1331S WIHTATHL3E 1269096
oz Wne)jonag Ho annelpAy BEVSE 1ED proNiey 10413 uewiny g661/6/8 YNNYMWYIOV1 13318 WIHITHL3E 509086
0s Jayio 112144181 109418 suaikdouc £19SE 1eLISnpU| B IBWWOY J0u13 uewny 9661/2/9 YNNYMYIOV] 133LS W3HFTHLIE £207096
4] 13410 Ken EZCSE 1BINSApU/EIdIBWWGD 3in)ie4 awidinb3 966T/L/9 YNNVMYHOYT 13348 W3HITHL3G BELENSE
ot 2010 - d3yio 20ese BUISRpUARIDIaWWoY EEDR 966T/VPT/S YNNVAMYIOYT 13318 W3HIHLIY £E12096
{58110 EClH ) jeaa £915E iE0 peolfiey N334 STAOWS ain)jed Juswidinb3 966T/Le/E YNNYMYIOVT AINV1d 13348 W3HITHLI39 8E.8156
007 wnajonad 1o atinelphy 9rise |BLISApUINeRIsWIL0Y UIPIOAY djed | 9661/81/¢ YNNVMYIOVT dOHS HOVIN T1331$ WIHITHL39 T819TS6
0L P00 J3]EM3ISEM LEISE 1BLISNPUIALINIBLWIS ainyje4 studinby 9661/07/8 YNNYMYIDVT T331S WIHAHIAE CBLSTSE
0 wnejonad wnajoned umouyun 6615¢ lelysnpujeniswwogy aimyed wawdinb3 9661/8/E YNNVMYAOVT 7331S WaH3H138 01681496
£ |EUIZ1BIY SROPIRZEH 1 13)RLI SHOPIEZEY UMOUNU S01GE 1ELISNPU /1R WWo] alnjied wawdinby 9661/01/2 YNNYMYADV] 1331S WaH31H138 06ErTS6
0z 1BLIA)B Snopiezey  sajlle|oa yo3id Jeyjeed 0018¢ 1eUISNpU/RIZIBULIWOeD aunjied wawdinby 966T/v/C YNNYMWYAOYT 13318 W3HATH13d 050v1S6
0é B0 - sy SEOSE 1etisnpulaelRWWOG 2injie4 Wsdinby 966T/ST/T YNNYMYIOVT TH3LS WIHITHLIE LHLZTER
(174 1BL3)E I snopiezey p1ae aunjns v208¢ 1eHisnpu|/ieidsewWwog aimyeq Juawdinby 9661/6/T YNNYMYAOVT SAd /13348 WIHITHLI3E GESZISE
05 1B[1332)4 snopiezey eluawie PLOSE 1BUISNpU/RIdIBWW0Y ainiie4 wawidinby S66T/BT/2T YNNYMYIOV] 13318 W3HITHL3E £941186
Sz 8410 l91emasem Trose |BHISNpUjNeoIsWwWog sInijeq jusidinby S661/8/2T YNNYMYIOVT 13318 W3HIATHL38 QEETTISE
o1 BUY1g [alemaisem 12058 18MSNPU/BIIIBLLOY ainje4 Juswdinby G66T/8/1T YNNYMYAOVT 13318 WaHATHL3E 7286056
QST |BL31e W Snopiezey (paxiw) suaix S66rE 1BLisNpU|NenBwweg aInjie4 Juauidinb S661/22/01 VNNYMYAOVT 13318 WIHITHLIE €506056
SL 1ELa3e} SNOpieZeH ElUOWWE 50058 (BIRSNPU|NIDISIIMOY 2injied juawdinby S661/81/0T YNNYMYIOY] 133148 WAHTIHLES £188056
00T 1BLBIRI SNOPIEZEH elucwiwe £005€ 1BLISNAL|/EIDIB WG] TH3AQ Yue), SB6T/9T/0T YNNYMYIOVT 133LS WIHITHLIE 8L980S6
0s 13410 iel L0058 {EHISNpU/RI3S W0 ainjted Juswdinba S661/91/0T YNNYMYNOY'T T33LS W3HATHLI38 SL5805E
ST 1BUSE SNOPIBZEHB)EW SNOPIBZEY UMOUIU 866VE BlIsnpuiAeRIaWwWOoD ainjie4 Juswd|nbz S661/6/0T YNNYMYIOVT T33LS WAHATHL3E £9€8056
0 layi0 2W 2eU-U0U/0130-U0U UmC BEEVE ELISNpUIARIDIBUWWe]) alnyie4 yusuwidinby S66T/6/0T VNNVMYAOV 3318 WAHITHL3E LOEBOSE
st 3y0 tonby apioid TE0SE Aonitjuel J0413 vewny S661/6T/6 YNNYMWIOY T3S WIHATHL3E 0£52056
401 wnsjonaqg 110 3qn} 16258 |BLHSNpU(/2d)8Wuo) umuqury S661/1/6 YNNYMWHOYT THIA HYE- 19318 WAHTTHLI8 SLLADSE
{'1e3) fpuend  Apueyjepalen SweN Jeusiep ajeq aso)n a2inos Apoquarepy 1030€e4 upnquos sjeqds Apeaoy swen Ayioey weidold Jaquinn ds

-53-



0 wnajonad 1o NnelpAy ££99¢ Jed peonjey amnjte4 Juawdinbg 0002/T/¢ YNNYMYAOVT 13318 WIHIATH13g £208L
{1324 180 1B} VES5E 1elRsnpui/elawuIcg aumied awdinby 0002/52/2 VNNVYMYADYT 13318 WIHIATHL3E 8LE€166
008 ptile] 212/Ns Wnjuolwwe 359¢ 1eLIsnpu|/eldlawwo) aimieq juswdinb3 000¢/52/2 VNNYMYAIYT 133LS WIHATHLEE P8EETE6
002 wne)onad 110 ysem L1498 TBUISNpUl/eIRWW0D A3 IAT 40113 LewnH a0ozZ/St/e YNNYMWYIOY] 14318 WAHIATHL3E 9895466
002 wnajellad jloysem 8659€ 1elISnpu|/eIaswwe) Jo43 uewny 0002/51/2 YNNYMYHOY 33LS WIHITHL3E PT0ET66
G52 13410 - daulo 9959 1BLISTIpLARIISWW0 DY ainjie4 Juawdinby 000%/8/2 YNNYMYHOYT J3ILS WIHTTHI3E GILTTEE
Qs 1elateld snoplezeH  sajiejoa youd 1eyjeco 96698 lelisnpujaeidiswiwo) a:njie4 Juawdinb3 oooz/ee/T YNNYMYNOVT 133LS WIHTHL3g 18€TT66
g =240 3lRJINS Wniuouile 9rSat RO “A0Y GeUDHEINDS TRUOARIISY] ainjie4 wawdinby 000z/te1 YNNYMYAOVT 133LS WAHITHI3E S51ZT66
01 unaonad Hoysem 9rsac 1etisnpujnetlswwoy Bsuo0 000z/02/1 YNNYMYIOV 133LS WIHITHLIE ST1ZT66
og wnsjonad 110 ysem SEE9E 1BeLISNpUARIIBWWOY 3injied Juaidinby 666L/TE/CY YNNYMWIOV ] T33LS WIHIIHL3E SrPI166
14 18410 ley £L879E 1BLIsnpUi/e[dawwoeg 1013 uewny 666T/02/1T YNNVMYIOY] 13315 W3IHTTHL3G 1Ziot6e
05 Eili (o) 31BYINS winiuawe PSrEE 1elisnplinelaswwog HRAQ Huel 666T/TZ/0T YNNYMYI OV TE31S WIHITHLIE 8538066
SL lelsiely snopiezey eluowwe 8ot 1eisnpuiaeldiewwod ain)ied Jawdinby 6661/ST/0T YNNYMWIOYT 13318 W3IH3TH13g Tr98066
) wrajoiad 140 8gn] SPreE JelISnpUjABfeWWoD ainjie{ Juawdinby 6661/0T/0T YNNYMWIOVT 133LS W3HITHL38 LBERO6E
0052 wnajonad 1assIp T9P9E elishpuifeiswwey wsjjepuea 666T/0/0T YNNVMYIOV 13318 WIH3TH134 £ETR06E
05 1elidle|y snopieze ejuowwe GEPOE 1eLIShpUI/N. IO Aunie4 wowdinb3 666T/2C/6 YNNYMYAOYT SNAAC A0 WAHATHLIG OFSL066
0 wnajonsd wnaenad umounun 0Zree etasnpulAeiawwod pEE ] BWo 666T/91/6 YNNVMYIOV 1331S WAHITH13g 6022066
ov el aey shoplezey soisagse SIvae 1BHISnIDUI/B I 2IBLILe D 3013 Uewny G6E6BT/ET/6 YNNVYMYIOYT] 1331S WIHIHLIAG £E0L066
<34 8410 21e/Ins Wniuowe LIb9E 1BUISNPUI/BI2IaWweD aimied Juswdinby 666T/2/6 YNNYMYIOVT 13318 W3IHTTHLIE £959066
0 wnayonad Holen) zg ERsaE jeiIsnpu|/BI3iBWL0 g aimies yuey 8661/1/6 YNNYMYIOY] 180 -1331S WAHA1HLI8 60Y5L66
Q wnajoned HolenL g4 L1boe 1BlIsSnpuINBIzIaWWGeD ainjiegyuel 666T/T/6 YNNVMYADV 73318 WAH3TH138 52599068
S 1eU33ely SNOPIBZEH  s3|1eloA yoiid Je) e 00€SE 1eusnpul/jgliaunuag aimey wadinby B66L/02/5 YNNYMYADV 13318 WaH3TH138 ZL61066
ot 1EU@IBIY SNOPIEZEH  SBjIR]oA YOYId JeL {e0d 0Zege jesnpu)neRlawwog umowiun BE6T/0E/Y YNNYAMYIOV 13318 W3HATH138 £911066
Sz Wwn3104334 110 ysem Gyeas 1BIASNPU|/ IR LIWaY aunjted Juswdimnby BEBL/ET/E YNNYMYAOYT 13315 W3H3TIHL38 9515486
00§ wnelonad 110 usem Svzoe 13410 “A09 ‘|leuoneanpy ‘leuonniisu) ainjied wawdinb3 B68L/2T/E YNNVMWIOV] NVId 3X00/71331S WAHIRLIE 0187186
ot Wwinajonad 110 Usem 1414 BIHSIPU|/R12i9WWo ) une Juswdinha 6661/6/€ YNNYMYIOVT T33LS WAHATH138 TESPI8E
0 wnajonad Jlo Usem 0819¢ 1eLIsSnpuj/jeIRWwWe ) aimieq Juswdinby 6661/3T/T YNNYMWIOV] 13318 W3HIHL39 LLLT186
SL 1ElIBieIy Snopleze suaieuiydeu SLI9E 1BHSAPU|NeI2IBMIWO D ainie4 Juswdinby BEBT/PT/T VNNVAYNOYT] 13318 WaH3IH139 8692186
0 BYiQ Isemaisem SL19¢2 1BLISNPU|/BIIBWWO D aine4 wawdinby GEEL/PT/T YNNYMPDIOW] 1331S W3HAH13g 9692186
0 Il18)ely snopleze  sa)ije1oa yoid 4211802 GLL98 JEHISAPU/R|d 800D ainjie 4 wawdinby B6BT/VL/T YNNYMYAOV] 13318 W3HITH.L38 8697186
sz |EM31e W Snopiezey  s3jlieloa yo3id Jerjeod FAA%: ] _m_zw:u:_\_m_EmEEoo alnye4 uswdinby 666T/0T/T VYNNYMYIOY 13318 WIHFTHL39 TTSC186
()7 wnajonag 110 ysem 24198 IBHISNpUjNRIDoMWOD aimie4juswdinby 666T/V/T YNNYMVAOY] 13348 WAHT'THLAS AL
0ot ELl o] T9#105U8) vorse eHISNpu|eRRWWOg do3 uewny G66T/T/T YNNYMYIOV] SNIAQ N0 - 13318 Hi3g 812186
a0t B3I Snoplezey  s3jlieoa Yand seyjeoa G9T9e [BLISNPU/RI943Wi0 0 ainjey wawdinby 8661/62/21 YNNYMYHOYT 13318 WIHI1HL38 TETZT8E
0z eU3ie snoplezey eluowwe S919¢ TBLISNPU|RIIBWIWLOD ainyey jwawdinb3 866T/92/21 YNNYMYAOV] 13318 WIHIHL3E 9r0CT86
4 240 i8] EETOE 1BLISNpU|/efdBwe) ainie4 Juswdinbl BEBT/E/ZT YNNYMYROY] 13318 WaHATHL38 2601186
S R0 ie} ZEL9E . elisnpulfeRiswwe] ainjied yuawdinb3 868T/2/CT YNNYMYNOV] 13348 WIHITHL3E 201186
S B3I Snoplezey efuoLiwie ZETHE IB|ASOpU)/1RIMBWWoY ainie4 Juswdmby 868T/2/2T VYNNYMWIOV] T33LS WIHAHEIE 201186
§2 Rl le) i€} 18298 185 000007 < (4SOW) A28 Jofew aInjieq Juswdinb3 g66T/VZ/TT YNNYMYAOY) 13318 WIHATHL3G 80186
5 wnsjonag 10 9jneuphy £0098 1BLISNpUiNEIIRWILID ainte4 Watudinbz 866T/¢/TL YNNYMYIOV? T331S WAHITHI3E 9826086
s By1o - 13y1o £809¢ BUISNpU}/RIDIBWWOY aimiey Juawdinby 866T/VT/0T YNNVMWYIOVT 133LS WIH13HI3E LLLB08E
0 wna)01eg 13s8tp 0909€E 18410 09 ‘JeUOneINpT JeuonnKIsy| 1340 866T/1/6 YNNYMWYHOYT OILYAY3X3 1331S W3HITHLIE p10986
v 1el®e W snopleze ploeounyns 81098 IBLISNpUi/BIRISWWeD ainjjeq wawdinby 866T/TT/8 YNNYMYADVT 3318 WIHITH1IG §£85086
g 13010 3BJNS Whjualue EViSE IELISNPL}/RI2ISWL0D 0413 vewny B661/£2/5 YNNYMYROY] 133LS WIHTTHI3E 64¥2086
g 1el3ie| snoplezey ElLOWWe 8C6SE |ELISNpU/lelRIsWWo) ainjie4 Juswdinby 8661/1L/5 YNNYMYHOVT TS WIHATHLIE CTLLTO86
0y 183510 13)2majsem SIGSE 1BIRSNPU| /g aungy aime4 Wwewdinby 8661/6Z/1 YNNYMYAOYT T33LS WIHITHLITE 8v21086
C B3ya = layo 2085 1elisnpuj/elosewwo) ainjied Jwawdinby 866T/6/T YNNVMYADV 13318 WIHIAHL3E ZrerTtis
00g 13410 = [yl L4588 1BLISNPU{ARIdI3UIWTED A0 quet LEBT/TT/CT YNNYMYXOV 13318 WIHTTHLI3E LSPOTLE

(e8} Apuend  Ajwed jepsiely IWeN jeise e 9s0)n 201085 Apogquajep 1010€4 dupnguogn a1eqg nids Apesoy awen Ayntoe] wesdolg sRqunnmds

-54-



wnejonag

whajoned umouyun vEee1/£1/9 Umauxur) A33H0 SIHOMWS UMDY YEBL/ET/S YNNYMYIOY] HI3Y0 SIAOWS NI NJIHS 6T9E076
T wnsjonad 19831p ¥E61/ET/S led peodjiey ainjied Wawdinby VEEL/ET/S VNNVAMYIOV] AYMTIVY OTV43n9 HINOS ysceove
S uinajcag Sussoay PEEL/EE 8] pEdljey Ea_m,n EmEn_amm Vee1/8e/1 VYNNVMYADVT avOuvd OTv44Nd HLNOS 6661E6
0001 wnajonad 19s81p E661/8/11 IELISNPUIAEIS B WO - wsflepuen S6BL/TE/L YNNYAMYNOVT AYMTIVY Ov44N8 HINOS L6ES0E6
oe wnajoiag 108504 PEBT/SEST 1BlISNpUy/BjIsWwWon AIZH3 SDIOWS ainyedjuswdinby £661/9T/7 YNNVMWYIOVT AVMIIVY OTv44N8 H1NOS £8800e6
0 wnsjoned aufjosed 24 §9d 18410 40 UD)IBIG BUj) c661/1e/8 VNNYMWIOV] OOONNS - LLNQY3dS Zregoes
G inajonag 110 pasn/)io alsem 266T/0E/L IRLISNPUIABI3BWWOD Bleagiag TE6T/TIL YNNYMYADV HiYdIY OLNY UINYNL 6v8Y0Z6
v} una10i94 1osslp <661/52/8 lBlisnpu|elnswwoey ainjiegyue| ZE6T/8T/S YNNYMWIOVT AVMIVY OT¥43N9 HINOS SpoToza
] wnajeliad aunosed 1661/TT/9 A1ed S84 13410 10 UO)ILIS BUNOSES) dn)ied yueg 1661/5/9 YNNYMYHOYT OHNAWYH PZFC LY HOQO £r9zo16
0 wnaalad 1asaip ZE6T/VT/8 IBLISNpU)/jeswwo) ainjeq yuej 1661/1/9 YNNYMYADIV T3931S 13AWYS R¥AZANT
0 wnajalag 18831p 686T/2e/6 1BlSNPL/ el 8mWwo] 2inie 1831 yuey 686T/ET/E YNNYMWIOY Qyorlivd Ov44N8 HINOS 2856082
T wnajogag wnajaiad umouyun 886T/vT/6 umouyun 33D SPIOWS umouxun 8861/8/9 YNNYMVYAIV] AFAYD STAOWS NITIO 0912088
L7 ulnajonagd 19531p 886T/12/9 YA [ejsWo) NHBAQ Auey 886T/PC/S YNNYMYAOYT “ON{ 'S3TVS S¥9 0avs 0TL1088
("es) qnuend  Aywey Jeuaen JweN jeuaey aeq ase)) adinog Apoquarem 10)2e4 Bupnguiuos a1eq mds Aiesoq aweN Aioeq wesdolg aquinp neds
[ wnajonad wnajonad umouwun Tri8e 1eisnpu|/eiRIswWwWed alnjledjue] 800T/T/T YNNVMWYIOVT  31vO T ¥ ISNOHIYI 410 "14S "H13d P2s15s
o 9400 1el31ew umojun HI08E umouun RGO v002/T/E YNNVMYIOVT Advd WIH3ITH13g 205858
0T wnaioiad 10 2\neupiy EIA74% 1eHIsnpu|feIzisWwWoD aimed uawdinbg 200z/9/8 YNNYMYIOVT X31dWOI 13318 WIAHIATHLIG 9€e8LE
S wnsjonag 110 afnelphy FErLe 1BLISNPU| AR |2I3Unu0D sInyed waetudinby Z00Z/v/9 YNNYMWIOVT 13318 WAHITHLIg 811542
] wnajoiad wnajonad umousun vrr8t elasnpujnenlswwog 3ANON umouun T00c/Ee/e VYNNVMWIOYT (HONIYL $)133LS WIAHTTHLIE T0€20T
oz wnajonag wnajanad umouiun Z1Z8E ieuisnpuj/iejoisiiwog uamotyugy <002/9/S YNNYMYIOWV] HONIYL N) 13318 WIHITHLIE 8EETOT
0s 2o - 3yi0 ETATAS RHISNpUjeBWWOY Umouyun 200z/eT/2 YNNYMWIOW] 13318 W3H3TH138 6780TT
oeT Ll V] ialemalsem 0LLLE TRMISNRUL/EIDSRUNLOT ainjie, wawidinb 1002/9/0T YNNYMWIOW] 133LS WYHITHL3G BLOL0T
0z wnojonad 1a ysem atLe 18410 "A09 ‘leuolieonpd Yeuonnisul NEsAQqUEL 1002/82/6 YNNYMYIOVY] 13318 WAH3THLIE 854901
GoE wnejoliag 110 ysem VrLLE 1BLISAPUY /RIS LoD ainie4uawdinby 1002/%/6 VNNYMYADVYT J33LS WaHATHL38 LZB50T
0sT 1BlI31e} SnopiezeH Biuowwe aotie lellsnpujnernlswwon doli3 uewnyH T002/2/8 YNNYMYHOVT 1331S HL39 9CLYOT
& wnajonag O Ysem BEOLE [ELSNPU/BIOle W0 am)je uswdinby 1002702/L YNNYMYAOYT 13318 WAHAHi3g VPOt
0 wnajodiad wnajoned umowjun SL04E umowiun hEERD] umouwnun T002/1/2 YNNYMYNHOV 1334S WIHTAHL3E €BISLT
(418 4840 1j05usy D80LE {emsnpuy/|euawwe) 40313 UBwiny T00Z/5T/9 VNNYMYRIVT QHYA BNYOS < 13318 K138 98820T
g wnatonad wnajoi3ad umouwyun EEOLE JeUISPpUjAeaWWoY Buyo 1002/12/9 YNNYMYAOVT NG DIODMFALS WIHTTHI3. T66T0T
r wnajonag 110 ysem vioLe [eLASNPUAe[2IWWeD P_:_,_usurw,.._mEn_:uw. Tooe/Ess VNNYMWIOV] 3318 W3HIHL38 FLZTIOL
5 wnajonag Jasaip 20048 JBLASNPUIBOI2UILIGY ~ IouzuewnH 1002/92/% VNNYMYAOYT 13318 WIHTTHLIE 010701
g wnaoinad wnajonad umouun EBEBE eIISnpUNBIWLIY NV dIHS YNNVAVYADY :z,o_._w_a:j 100221y YNNYMYIOYT TYNYD QiHS/WAHATHIAg To0sSLT
€ \ellRlely snoplezed  Saie|oA ya)|d Jey |eoa 46698 eiisnpulAeiIswwWon _oh._.m_ﬂmElI T00Z/L2/2 YNNYMWIDV] 13318 W3HATHI3g LG92T
0 |eli@1R}y SNOpIEZEH 102usg LZeae 1eLISNPU|A.I21aWLIOY Umouyuny £002/0¢/T YNNYMWIOVT 13318 WaH3TH138 00LrT
09 1EURIBW SNOPJEZEH  SBNLI0A Yo)d Je) |pod 0169¢ eLsnpulenawwaoy aunyed ucw.rmn__:_uu 10Z/8T/T YNNYAMYIOV] 73318 WaH3AH1Ig BLEIT
0z 1BlIale)y snopiezey  $3)13810A Yo} d 1811802 76898 1eilsnpujse|aI3twan ainjiey Jusdinby T00Z/E/T YNNYMYIOVT T331S W3HFTHLIG 980T
74 BY0 iey £889¢ JeHISNPU/EIIBWWOD 40413 uewny 000z/ez/TT YNNVMYIOVT 713318 W13H3THL38 £680T
¥ wnatonad HO {sem A 1BLliSNpU/eI8WWo Y ainied jueuidinby Q00z/12/21 YNNYMYIOV1 13318 WIHFTHI3S £6501
0009 1eliaiely snopiezeH Eluoe £989¢ 1Blisnpu|Neldiswwoy alnjjed4 Ew&a_rum 000Z/vrTT YNNYMWIOVT 13318 W3HITHL38 rL66
S wn3jonag 119 ysem 6589¢ IELISNpUjABIBIIWOD amjes uadinb3y 0002/62/T1T YNNYMYADIV 13318 WIH3THL138 (441
0T Byo 181EMmajsem ££89¢C 1ELISNPU{/IRI2I3WWL0Y B3y 000Z/2/TT YNNYMYAOV1 13318 W3HITHL38 6968
(14 wnajoiad N0y Z4 TE89E IBIASnpUl/1€1218Wwmo0) ainiied Juswidinb3 000Z/1£/0% YNNYMWIOVT 13318 WIHATHL3E (868
S 13410 1glemalsem 6T89E 1eLISNpulABIRIsWWeD ainye] wawdinb3 000Z/02/0T YNNYMYAOVT NIQIING 4 ANY O/WIHITHLIg aeve
002 wraodEy 10 annepiy EEL9E B13YBA jetIUIL0D ainjigy wsuwidinby 000Z/ET/9 YNNYMYAOV] 1A3IS WAHITHLI3E ovze
€ 1eHSJEW SNOpIEZEH  SB1IRI0A youd 16} |e0a PELOE 1BHISNPU/EdI8WWod ain)le4 Juawdinb3 0002/v2/S YNNYMTIOV] 133LS WIHITHLIE £0€2
118 EElbe) iey LFO9sE JRLISNPU(AB(DIBWWOD ain)jey Wawdirib3 000Z/5Z/y YNNYMYH IV 133LS WIHTTHL3E pSol
ooe BYI0 JJJNs wnjuowie 8699¢€ 13410 “A09 ‘leucfizanp] ‘euoiininsug aIn)iey uawdinby 0002/6/c YNNYMYIOV] 13318 WIHIAHLI3E £16ET66
oot BYIO B1E/NS Wnjuowiwe BES9E 1ef) peodjiey aun)ied wawdinby 0002Z/8/8 YNNVMYIOY] I33LS W3HIHL3g LT8ELE6
("1es) Apuend ey 1enajep aWEN je[lalely aeq asopn anos Apoqialem 1032e4 Sunguiuon alegids Aeson aweN fyftoeg weadoig R_quny mds

-55-



] winajonaqd uinsjaiiad umouyun ST02/82/2 UGN NITHD STAOWS umouwyun ST02/TZ/L YNNYMWYA OV X33HO SINOWS PREPOST
T wnajonad 1e JolowW 8102/21/9 leLisnpujeldiswwoey EIEEEN A ainjed yuawdinb3 S10C/2/9 YNNVMY’OVT  YVHONIM ANIWGOIIAIATY HISWND:  ZEEZTOST
£ wnajoisd 110 J3wlojsuel} ST02/S1/8 FOIYBA [BIOIBWW0Y w019 ¥1oz/1ent VYNRVMVAIV] €62 3103 S1880%T
0 wnajolisd aunosed vI0Z/NeIL Aupoed $8d 18410 10 UOREIS BUNDSED ainjied wawdinby £T02/0T/L YNNVMYIOVT $1304 130X3 SYHEOET
] wnajoliad wnajonad umouun 1BMISNPU}/ OIS0 AT SINOWS umouyun Z10Z/0E/DF YNNYMYIOV1 A33H0 SINOWS PETELZL
] wnajonad aunoses ST0¢/82/0T Anioed $8d 1ay10 10 UDjIELSG BUNOSEDH B0 2T0Z/0T/L YNNYMYIOVT AHOM QYOH LOUSAN SeproTT
04 wnajonad 1oagm eLoeg/0e/T 1BHISHPLARIIBWILLI0Y ainie4 wadidinba Z1oZ/eefT YNNYMPADV ANIGENL ANIM ZISTITT
0 winajoneg o dlnesphy 010¢/8/0T 1ELASNPUIABIRIBWWIOY amjie4 Juawidinb3 0102/8/0T YNNYMYIOVT S INIgYNL 65€£00T
0 wnajoliad 110181} 9 0102/91/8 1BUISAPU|/IE0IBLIWOYD NMONANN umouxun) 0102/2Z/L YNNYMWIOVT WHY NNYL HASWNOAL T08r00T
4 wnaonsd lo @)puids/iead O102/Liv 1BUISApUI/BRIBWILICD ainjie4 Wawdinby otoT/LY YNNVMYIOV £ HIMOL SANIM 15414 1920001
ot wnajoliad 10 idwiojsuen 0102/0T/8 1BHISAPU|BIDIBWWOD ainmjey wawdinbl 6002/4/0T VYNNYMYNOVT ¥ #310d 0paiis
4 wnajoiad 18salp 0102/8/T Auioed 584 19410 40 UBHIRIS BuljoseD ainjed wawdinby 6002/0¢/6 YNNYMYIOVT LYYW INIW SHNVYS B9EL06
0 wnajanag wnisjonad umouyun 6002/62/0T 1eLusNpU|/IRI3RULILGG Eelite) 6002/91/9 VNNVMWIOWYT  HINHOO 3/S INVd 1334S YIWHOA 9B0EQE
1 wnajonad 1o nnesphy 800Z/ST/P AonIL AUt ainyied swdinby 800T/5T/7 YNNYMYAOVT 31IS NIBdNLONIM 685008
a winajodiaq 1ouey3a/auljosed £00Z/81/6 Alleed $gd seyzo Jo Uoners aufoses umouyun L00Z/eT/2 YNNYMYAOVT NOLLYLS ANITOSYS T130X3 L6159
0 wnajonag wnajoned umouyun 2002/5T/9 umouxun ENER LA umouun 900Z/21/49 YNNYMYAOVT A3IHD SIHOWS/FHIT AV Lp9109
(] wnsjolag $PIN}j 31Sem oine S00Z/S1y 1EUISNPUlARId/BtUW0Y Bujdadyasnoy 900Z/T/1 YNNYMYAOVT YOVEYA NIAILS {84159
0 wnajonad 1to ysem S002/92/6 1BLISOpUNeIdIBWWOY B0 S002/¥2/6 YNNYMYIOV] ANYd 13318 W3HITHI3E G0 ¥0940S
0 BUo 1BHRIBW umouun ¥00Z/9T/1T 12H1SAPUEARIDISILIWOD uMouNLn) v00Z/ST/TT YNNYMYAOVT T133LS WIHITHL39 YvaN 8981587
v wnajonad 10 Jelosuel) S00Z/5/1 feusnpuingaiswwoy aimjied Juswdinby 002/62/0T VYNNYMYHOV #3104 voEROY
] winajofiag 110 dhneiphy pOUZ/EZa Telsnpul/jejoiaiwogd AF3HD SLIOKWS RYO v00ZrZZ/8 VYNNYMWIOVT FINYHOXI NOISSIWSN VYL LESSO0Y
0 winajonad 10 24neIpAYy v002/€2/8 elisnpuINgRIewwWoY A33HO SPIOWS 1300 ¥00Z/ee/8 VYNNYMYIOV JONVHOXI NOISSIWSNYHL L6550V
0 wnejanag aujoses W0eTLIY Anises Sad Jayi0 4o uopels sufjoses UnouRun ¥002T/6T/Y YNNYMYIOVT NOILYLS ANITOSYS aT10 £E05LYy
S wnajonad 110 804 uou £002/08/L lelIsnpujieidiewwog aimied wawdinb3 £002/02/1 VNNYMYIOVT 1331S HI38- OW IN 96YSLT
e wnajonaq 110 2nnespAy AT S 180 PEOL|EY aInjied wawdinby &002/01/9 YNNYMWAOYT AYMAVY OTY44NE HINOS 62T8LT
0 Jayo 1BJ18jeW UmouRUR co0z/eT/E umousun TYNYD YNNYMWAOVT umoupun cooeretL/e VNNYMYAOV TYNYD dIHS YNNYMWIOYT 8PLITT
g unayanag wnajonad umouyun tooz/oLry umowsun NV dIHS YNNYMYEOY ddlo Tougre/y VYNNYMYAOY IVNYD dIHS VNNYMWIOVT ST000T
ot 1By10 ey 000Z/97/1T |ELISNpUl/R|oRWWoY JoJi3 ueding 000Z/9T/11 VNNYMWYOY WIHTWHLIA/WNNOVA TYNOILYN 9Ive
0s 3410 131eMmaisem 0002/9T/11 |BLESNpUl/IelaUe) Joiig uewiny Q002/91/1T YNNYMYAOY') WIHITHLIG/WNADVYATIYNOILYN 9178
T wnaoliad 110 pasn/io aisem 000¢/5/6 3[2IY3A [eRIBWWOD NVO dIHS YNNYMWIOY 103 uewnH 000¢/5/6 YNNYMYAOVT 13318 W3HITHL3A LY X0NYL 5599
0 3wo ademas mes Qo0ZIvie Haawiun A3 SINOKWS umouun 0002/22/9 YNNVMWYOYT 334D SIAOWS NI F9YMAS G95E
0 wnejonsd wnajonad umouyun 000T/veY umouiun A33HD SINOWS sjesanaq 000g/6T/¥ YNNYMWIOY %3350 SINOWS NI IO £E0SL
0 wnaouzd wnajoliad umowjun 6661/L/8 1BHISNPU{/BIOI8UIWI0D AFIHD SAAOKWS aim|ed awdinbl B66T/4/8 VYNNYMWHOVT Y3380 STAOWS NI IO S015466
0 wnaond WOy ZH 002/82/21 1BUISNpUlAelDIaLIWOD Sujdasxasnop 866T/1/8 YNNVMYAOYT AvOHTIVY 01V44Nd HINOS S285086
0 winajonsg aujosesd 000Z/€1/9 Auni9e4 S84 Jay1o 10 uonels aufoses uUmou3ur BEGT/1/8 VYNNYMVAOVT 1LNAYAdS/LD310Hd LOASAN 9145086
0 R[Rpo eHajew umouwyun 000Z/21/y 18130 “A09 ‘leuo(jeanp3 euopnijisu] umouyun 8661/1/8 YNNVMYHOY] AdD STHOWS/LOI(0Hd LOQSAN LTLS086
0 18110 1ELSIRLLE UMOLUN 0002721/ 19UI0 “ACY jeun|iesnp3 ‘euoyninsu) umawiun B661/1/8 YNNVMWIOY WIHITH138/1937Q8d LOASAN £1.5086
0§ Lwnajonag 13s31p 866T/€2/T AJIYBA 1BI21aWILL0D Wapay Jiyel) 66T/ETT VNNV OV 13318 WAKITHL3E LY oML 68T1L6
1] EElblo} 1€1431EL UMOLUN 866T/E¢/C umousun HIFHO MOWS umauun LB6T/22/T YNNYAYADYT 133418 V38 NO 10 MOTT3A SL82196
0 unajonag 110 pasnpio ajsem 9661/6/C 1euisnpul/eIawWwIo) 3eisqnag 966T/T/T YNNYMYIOYT TYLEW? DILSYId YAOuVLS 162y156
or wnajonag 110 pasn/jio aisem S66T/0£/0T 1B PECIIEY [un)ie4 Juawdinby Seer/ee/e YNNYMYI OV QYOUTIVY OTV43Nd HLNOS ££18046
T wnajonag 110 pasnyio sysem S66T/CT/L SIY3A 1BIDIBWIWGY ainjied4 Juswidinby S66T/0T/L YNNVMYIOVT NOILINYLSNOD IAOHINYO LYEY0SE
0 wnajoliad 1o anneiphy S66T/ZT/L SIBIBARIBWIWOD s1n)je. Juawdinb3 S661/0T/L YNNYAMYAOV] NOLLONYISNOD 3IAOHINVO LYEV0SE
0 wnajonagd 110 pasnyiio aisem S661/5T/Y umousun A3IHD SDIOWS umounun S66T/E/V YNNVMYADYT AHVd 'S 1V X3340 SINOWS £€20056
U] wnajonad wnajaliad umouxun S66T/Se/ umatniun A33HT SINOWS umouun SE6T/E/P YNNVMYADY] AuYd 'S LV ¥3340 SIIOWS £ETO0S6
000t winajoiiad 8UBS0J3Y 9661/52/6 1elisnpul/eRIaWWOY AITHI SOWS ainjleyuel S66T/L/8 YNNVAYIOVT 13318 H138-43340 S3NOWS 6£8STY6
0 uinsjosad auposesd S661/82/8 A1ioe3 SE4 8 10 UopelS Bufioses ainyeL yue| VB61/Z/6 YNNYMWIOVT 139138 - SV9 2 40O1S 009L0¥6
0 wnajosad wnajoiad umouyun P661/51/8 1EUISnpuj/RI3IWWOoY A334D SINOWS ainre4 Juawdinby 766T/2/8 YNNVMYAOVT 91Z $30dS-¥334D SIHOWS 99te0ve
(1es) Anuend ey 1esle ILUEN relialey 8jeQq as01g 33Inag Apogiajem do3zey u..:u:n_._a:oQ ajeqnids fanesoq JuwleN a_—_umn— Em—MOhn faquiny mds

-56-



ST wasoliad 1as#p £Z0Z/9/T 1RLSRUI/IE| Jialin ) 1043 uewiny ZE02/QZI0T YNNYMYIOWT £23SN0OHTIYM GFES0EE
0 uwnajons¢ 110 Pasn/io ajsem 0202/eT/E 1elasnpueidIaUIte) umauyun 0202/T1/8 YNNYMYIOV] A3YO NINIIHS ZrrTIsT
0 wnajonay 110 J010W OegEaLEL 3joiya) JaBuasiey WAPIDOY SRl QzZ0Z/92(1 VYNNYMYYOVI SANddNS ¥4 40 LOTONINHYA STTOT6T
0 wnajonad wnajonad umouun 6T02/9T/S umowiun umouyuf 6102/91/5 YNNYMYAOVY alyo LyN Er9TO6T
0 wnsjonsg aunosed 6102/92/2 Apoey SHd 19430 40 UOHEIS BuNoses) aimjed Juawdinby 6102/52/Y YNNYAMI OV $834dX3 OOON T98006T
Q wnajoiad 1as9|p 6102/9¢/8 Q11984 S84 18430 10 UOjIEIS BUl0SED auinjed uswdinbg 6102/52w YNNVMWYIOVT §534dX3 OOON T98006T
0z wn3jonag 110 pasnio aysem 0202/52/2 1elsnpuj/ejiswioy sinjied uawdnby 8102/61/11 VNNYMYIOV] DAIINYNL SHNFWYH 0052 TE8808T
o winajonagd auposed LT02/5/6 1BISNPUIN.IIBWWOY LYo LT02/18/5 YNNVMYIOVT ONIWNITOYLAd T130X3 TG580LT
0 By sed auedod S10g{ge et URBUSUL Waprdy alyes) STOZMTE/ZT YNNYMWIOVT GANHNIYIAC XONHL O £E6809T
0 wnajonag wnajonad umouun S102/82/L umowiun 3343 SINOKWS UMOUNUN ST0Z/52/L YNNVMYIOYT 3340 SIAOWS /1STY AUMIETINW ¥Vl £0SPOST

(1e8) Knuend  Mwey 1eaie JWeN je|iaely ajeq aso1n a3inag Apogiaem 1032e4 Supnqinuon Aeqnds fipeson aweN Ajn(oe weiSold Bquinnds

-57-



Attachment B

FEMA National Flood Insurance Rate
Map

-58-



s
705290

FLOOD HAZARD INFORMATION NOTES TO USERS SCALE
it o bmet. 408 kot st e Pt s i U U, el ki ool S P
o R R e o o i T e & 12D 1588 2o 180
POy keruton $kckn 34 T FLRAL (1077 39435 ' ee) T i Pood bl e L e L
ames | TR St e e 2T | | | Teeescame :
HTTPS;//MSC.FEMA.GOV " ) 500 1,000 2,000
H Without Base Floot Bievation (EFE) o e PO Bt - e eesssssssmmm Foel
Zone A A% =
| WRNBFEOTDEPE 2 AL A3 AILVEAR | o comaty i cmeere s s e s P ot b S et b i rmcon T 200
SPECIALAODD . - -
LROOD | (. egutatoy Roocvay e sy e e o e e i | BaMEL | Garan
I iey
of 1% anmual ehance fioud with average
dapthiess than ane foot or with drainage .
areas utless than one square @ik Zove x 3 -
Futurs Conditions 1% Anauat o coumy o @2
= Chance Food Hazard Zona X -
Area with Reduoed Flnod Risk e tndevee
OmER oF See Nales. Zooe ©
000 HAzarp | T2l Area whth Flood Risk due to Levee Zonc b
Asea of Minima] Flood Kagard Zore x
amER s
AREAS " Arma of Undetermined oot Hezard cone &
a7
_—— Chiannel, Cubvert, or Storm Sower
STRUCTURES  mmesron Leris, Dike, o1 Floodwall
B2 cross Sections with 1% Annual Chiznce
03t e
13— Basa Fiood Elevation Line (8FE)
Uit of Study
Hurisdiction Boundary <PANEL KOT PRINTED

-59_

National Flood Insurance Program

NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM
FLOGD INSCRANCE RATE 124F

ERIE COUNTY, NEW YORK
Al Jurdictions) =
e 336 o5 807 @,‘
Forwi Sorpin=
COMMNTTY NUMBER  PAMEL  BUFFX
oy e wwe
gowsoncm wea e s
YERSION NUMBER
23386
MAP NURSER
36029€0336¢
MAP BEVISED
JUNE 16, 2021



Attachment C

US Fish & Wildlife Threatened and
Endangered Species List

-60-



g,
S lhd & WAL it d
RERVH R
e AR

United States Department of the Interior ||
FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
New York Ecological Services Field Office
3817 Luker Road
Cortland, NY 13045-9385
Phone: (607) 753-9334 Fax: (607) 753-9699
Email Address: fw5es nvfo@fws.gov

In Reply Refer To: 02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

Project Code: 2025-0052732
Project Name: Wye Yard Rail Expansion

Subject: List of threatened and endangered species that may occur in your proposed project
location or may be affected by your proposed project

To Whom It May Concern:

The enclosed species list identifies threatened, endangered, proposed and candidate species, as
well as proposed and final designated critical habitat, that may occur within the boundary of your
proposed project and/or may be affected by your proposed project. The species list fulfills the
requirements of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) under section 7(c) of the
Endangered Species Act (Act) of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.).

New information based on updated surveys, changes in the abundance and distribution of
species, changed habitat conditions, or other factors could change this list. Please feel free to
contact us if you need more current information or assistance regarding the potential impacts to
federally proposed, listed, and candidate species and federally designated and proposed critical
habitat. Please note that under 50 CFR 402.12(e) of the regulations implementing section 7 of the
Act, the accuracy of this species list should be verified after 90 days. This verification can be
completed formally or informally as desired. The Service recommends that verification be
completed by visiting the IPaC website at regular intervals during project planning and
implementation for updates to species lists and information. An updated list may be requested
through the IPaC system by completing the same process used to receive the enclosed list.

The purpose of the Act is to provide a means whereby threatened and endangered species and the
ecosystems upon which they depend may be conserved. Under sections 7(a)(1) and 7(a)(2) of the
Act and its implementing regulations (50 CFR 402 et seq.), Federal agencies are required to
utilize their authorities to carry out programs for the conservation of threatened and endangered
species and to determine whether projects may affect threatened and endangered species and/or
designated critical habitat.

A Biological Assessment is required for construction projects (or other undertakings having
similar physical impacts) that are major Federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the
human environment as defined in the National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 4332(2)

-61-



Project code: 2025-0052732 02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

(c)). For projects other than major construction activities, the Service suggests that a biological
evaluation similar to a Biological Assessment be prepared to determine whether the project may
affect listed or proposed species and/or designated or proposed critical habitat. Recommended
contents of a Biological Assessment are described at 50 CFR 402.12.

If a Federal agency determines, based on the Biological Assessment or biological evaluation, that
listed species and/or designated critical habitat may be affected by the proposed project, the
agency is required to consult with the Service pursuant to 50 CFR 402. In addition, the Service
recommends that candidate species, proposed species and proposed critical habitat be addressed
within the consultation. More information on the regulations and procedures for section 7
consultation, including the role of permit or license applicants, can be found in the "Endangered
Species Consultation Handbook" at:

https://www.fws.gov/sites/default/files/documents/endangered-species-consultation-
handbook.pdf

Migratory Birds: In addition to responsibilities to protect threatened and endangered species
under the Endangered Species Act (ESA), there are additional responsibilities under the
Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) and the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (BGEPA) to
protect native birds from project-related impacts. Any activity, intentional or unintentional,
resulting in take of migratory birds, including eagles, is prohibited unless otherwise permitted by
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (50 C.F.R. Sec. 10.12 and 16 U.S.C. Sec. 668(a)). For more
information regarding these Acts see https://www.fws.gov/program/migratory-bird-permit/what-

we-do.

The MBTA has no provision for allowing take of migratory birds that may be unintentionally
killed or injured by otherwise lawful activities. It is the responsibility of the project proponent to
comply with these Acts by identifying potential impacts to migratory birds and eagles within -
applicable NEPA documents (when there is a federal nexus) or a Bird/Eagle Conservation Plan
(when there is no federal nexus). Proponents should implement conservation measures to avoid
or minimize the production of project-related stressors or minimize the exposure of birds and
their resources to the project-related stressors. For more information on avian stressors and
recommended conservation measures see https://www.fws.gov/library/collections/threats-birds.

In addition to MBTA and BGEPA, Executive Order 13186: Responsibilities of Federal Agencies
to Protect Migratory Birds, obligates all Federal agencies that engage in or authorize activities
that might affect migratory birds, to minimize those effects and encourage conservation measures
that will improve bird populations. Executive Order 13186 provides for the protection of both
migratory birds and migratory bird habitat. For information regarding the implementation of
Executive Order 13186, please visit https://www.fws.gov/partner/council-conservation-

migratory-birds.

We appreciate your concern for threatened and endangered species. The Service encourages
Federal agencies to include conservation of threatened and endangered species into their project
planning to further the purposes of the Act. Please include the Consultation Code in the
header of this letter with any request for consultation or correspondence about your project
that you submit to our office.

20f7
-62-



Project code: 2025-0052732 02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

Attachment(s):
= Official Species List

OFFICIAL SPECIES LIST

This list is provided pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act, and fulfills the
requirement for Federal agencies to "request of the Secretary of the Interior information whether
any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be present in the area of a proposed

action".

This species list is provided by:

New York Ecological Services Field Office
3817 Luker Road

Cortland, NY 13045-9385
(607) 753-9334

3of7
-63-



02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

Project code: 2025-0052732

PROJECT SUMMARY

Project Code: 2025-0052732

Project Name: Wye Yard Rail Expansion
Railroad - New Construction

Project Type:

Project Description: The proposed project consists of the deconstruction and relocation of a
railbed and tracks. The existing railbed and tracks are located east of the
proposed project site adjacent to NYS Route 5. The proposed railbed and

tracks will be located adjacent to existing track south of the solar
installation to provide an expansion of the existing service.

Project Location:
The approximate location of the project can be viewed in Google Maps: https://
www.google.com/maps/@42.804012549999996.-78.85327421833128,14z

’:"H"’m‘“-”ﬂ""['phqc .

-~

Lsa

e g

Counties: Erie County, New York

4 of 7

-64-



Project code: 2025-0052732 02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT SPECIES

There is a total of 2 threatened, endangered, or candidate species on this species list.

Species on this list should be considered in an effects analysis for your project and could include
species that exist in another geographic area. For example, certain fish may appear on the species
list because a project could affect downstream species.

IPaC does not display listed species or critical habitats under the sole jurisdiction of NOAA
Fisheries’, as USFWS does not have the authority to speak on behalf of NOAA and the
Department of Commerce.

See the "Critical habitats" section below for those critical habitats that lie wholly or partially
within your project area under this office's jurisdiction. Please contact the designated FWS office

if you have questions.

1. NOAA Fisheries, also known as the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), is an
office of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration within the Department of

Commerce.

50f7
-65-



Project code: 2025-0052732

MAMMALS
NAME

Northern Long-eared Bat Myotis septentrionalis
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/9045

INSECTS
NAME

Monarch Butterfly Danaus plexippus

There is proposed critical habitat for this species. Your location does not overlap the critical

habitat,
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/9743

CRITICAL HABITATS

02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

STATUS
Endangered

STATUS

Proposed
Threatened

THERE ARE NO CRITICAL HABITATS WITHIN YOUR PROJECT AREA UNDER THIS OFFICE'S

JURISDICTION.

YOU ARE STILL REQUIRED TO DETERMINE IF YOUR PROJECT(S) MAY HAVE EFFECTS ON ALL

ABOVE LISTED SPECIES.

-66-

6of 7



Project code: 2025-0052732

IPAC USER CONTACT INFORMATION

Agency: Private Entity
Name: Thomas Voigt
Address: 141 Elm Street
Address Line 2: Suite 100

City: Buffalo

State: NY

Zip: 14203

Email tvoigt@cscos.com
Phone: 7169553032

-67-

02/06/2025 15:16:29 UTC

7of7



Attachment D

NYSHPO Letter of No Impact

-68-



New York State
100 Parks, Recreation and
YEARS | Historic Preservation

KATHY HOCHUL RANDY SIMONS

Governor Commissioner Pro Tempore

February 18, 2025

Thomas Voigt

C&S Engineers, Inc.
141 Elm Street
Buffalo, NY 14203

Re: SEQRA
Wye Yard Rail Relocation
City of Lackawanna and Town of Hamburg, Erie County, NY
25PR01338

Dear Thomas Voigt:

Thank you for requesting the comments of the Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic
Preservation (OPRHP). We have reviewed the project in accordance with the New York State
Historic Preservation Act of 1980 (Section 14.09 of the New York Parks, Recreation and Historic
Preservation Law). These comments are those of the OPRHP and relate only to Historic/Cultural
resources. They do not include potential environmental impacts to New York State Parkland that

may be involved in or near your project.

Based upon this review, it is the opinion of OPRHP that no properties, including archaeological
and/or historic resources, listed in or eligible for the New York State and National Registers of

Historic Places will be impacted by this project.

If further correspondence is required regarding this project, please be sure to refer to the
OPRHP Project Review (PR) number noted above. If you have any questions, please contact
Chelsea Towers at the following email address:

Chelsea.Towers@parks.ny.gov

Sincerely,

8 D

R. Daniel Mackay

Deputy Commissioner for Historic Preservation
Division for Historic Preservation

New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation
Division for Historic Preservation, Peebles Island, PO Box 189, Waterford, New York 12188-0189
(518) 237-8643 « hitps://parks.ny.gov/shpo

-69-



Attachment E

NYS Great Lakes Seaway Trail Map

-70-



Burifalts & F1i
c:-"_(a t_ﬁ"‘_

ONTARH)

Yoy fown
SeUTT

Seaway Trail : J‘:‘ NEW YRR
. M
T AthAdren s
T Thaneum
(58)

tn Dunkirk ;
Dunbvk Hatoric |
Lththoase

: T : -I".mml_ - s
WYy anih ‘?!"

lhnnlniﬂ i
Farh {LEAR

= Fointofintersst A Campground — mmme Featured Byway .47 Water | State Border
L Park #  Picnic/Rest Ared  wesss America’s Byways [l Wildife Refuge  Urban Area

X Mountain Y inturstare s—ems OtherByway | WidernessArea | Tribal Nation
© cay Y Us.Highway  Otherfload | Otherfedenat Military Base
%  Capital 0677 State Highway Trail Other State Lands

-71-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts

Project :
Date :

Agency Use Only [If applicable]

WYE Yard Relocation

April 2025

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency. Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could
be affected by a proposed project or action. We recognize that the lead agency’s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental
professionals. So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that
can be answered using the information found in Part 1. To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question. When Part 2 is completed, the
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding

with this assessment.

Tips for completing Part 2:
e Review all of the information provided in Part 1.

Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.

Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.

checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.

question and consult the workbook.

Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.

If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.

e When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the “whole action”.
¢ Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
®  Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

1. Impact on Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of,
the land surface of the proposed site. (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 2.

[INo

KIYES

Relevant No, or Moderate
PartI small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is
E2d %4 O
less than 3 feet.
b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f ¥ O
c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or | E2a vy O
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.
d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons | D2a 4| O
of natural material.
e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year | Dle V4| O
or in multiple phases.
f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical D2e, D2q ¥ O
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).
g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. Bli V4| O
h. Other impacts: O O
Page 1 of 10
FEAF 2019

-72-



2. Impact on Geological Features
The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit
access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes,

KINO [JYES

minerals, fossils, caves). (See Part 1. E.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c. If “No”, move on to Section 3.

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: E2g o n]
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a E3c O O
registered National Natural Landmark.
Specific feature:
¢. Other impacts: a] O

3. Impacts on Surface Water
The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water
bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes). (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - L. If “No”, move on to Section 4.

[ONo

MIYES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur

a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h 74| (]

b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a | D2P il O
10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water.

¢. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material D2a 4| O
from a wetland or water body.

d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or E2h 4| O
tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body.

¢. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, | D2a, D2h P4 O
runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments.

f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal | D2c 7] O
of water from surface water.

g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge | D2d 1 |
of wastewater to surface water(s).

h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of D2e O
stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving
water bodies.

i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or E2h O
downstream of the site of the proposed action.

j- The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or D2q, E2h O
around any water body.

k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, Dla, D2d O
wastewater treatment facilities.

Page 2 of 10

-73-




1. Other impacts:

4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or

[/INo

may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer.

(See Part 1. D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 5.

[JYEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand | D2c u] O
on supplies from existing water supply wells.
b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable D2c O a
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source:
c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and | D1a, D2¢ 0 O
sewer services.
d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E21 o o
e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations | D2c, E1f, a O
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated. Elg,Elh
f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products | D2p, E21 m] o
over ground water or an aquifer.
g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100 | E2h, D2q, o ]
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources. E2il, D2¢c

h. Other impacts: O ]
5. Impact on Flooding

The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding. I:I NO WMIYES

(See Part 1. E.2)

If “Yes ", answer questions a - g. If “No”, move on to Section 6.

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i M a
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j O &
c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k O 4|
d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage D2b, D2e (4| O
patterns.
e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, (H |
E2j, E2k
f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair, | Ele 74} O
or upgrade?

Page 3 of 10

-74-




g. Other impacts: O O
6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source. DNO YES
(See Part 1. D.2.f,,D.2.h, D.2.g)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f If “No”, move on to Section 7.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. If the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:
i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO5) D2g O
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N,O) D2g (]
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs) D2g O
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SFs) D2g E
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of D2g
hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane D2h O
b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated D2g 0
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.
c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions D2f, D2g O
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 Ibs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU's per hour.
d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”, D2g O
above.
e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1 | D2s O
ton of refuse per hour.
f. Other impacts: O
7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna. (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.) [JNo YES
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j. If “No”, move on to Section 8.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may eccur oceur
a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any E2o o] |
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2o O
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.
c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any | E2p 74} O
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.
d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by E2p v (]
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

Page 4 of 10

-75-




e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural E3c v O
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.
f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any E2n a 0
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source:
g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
o . . . . . E2m 4] (W}
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site.
h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest, Elb O
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source:
i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of | D2q O
herbicides or pesticides.
j. Other impacts: (] O
8. Impact on Agricultural Resources
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources. (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.) NO DYES
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, move on to Section 9.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Partl small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the E2c, E3b o D
NYS Land Classification System.
b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land Ela, Elb o o
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).
c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of | E3b m] m]
active agricultural land.
d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural Elb, E3a m] m]
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.
€. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land Ela, Elb i o
management system.
f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development C2¢, C3, o g
potential or pressure on farmland. D2¢, D2d
g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland C2c D O
Protection Plan.
m] m]

h. Other impacts:

Page S of 10

-76-




9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in DNO YES
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource. (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, go to Section 10.
Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local | E3h (] ¥4 |
scenic or aesthetic resource.
b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant E3h, C2b 74| O
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.
c. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points: E3h
1. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons) ¥ | O
ii. Year round 4] O
d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed E3h
action is: _ E2q
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work ’ 0O
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities Elc 2 O
e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and E3h (4| O
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.
f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed Dla, Ela, %4 0
project: D1f,Dl1g
0-1/2 mile
¥4 -3 mile
3-5 mile
5+ mile
g. Other impacts: O a

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archacological
resource. (Part 1.E.3.e, f. and g.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 11.

[[INo

[Y]YES

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
_ | mayoccur | oceur |
a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on the National or Ele O
State Register of Historical Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner
of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for
listing on the State Register of Historic Places.
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3f (]
to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.
c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous | E3g O
to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source:

Page 6 of 10

-77-




d. Other impacts: (| [
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may
€. occur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:
i.  The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part E3e, E3g, |
of the site or property. E3f
ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or E3e, E3f, O
integrity. E3g,Ela,
Elb
ili. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which | E3e, E3f, (|
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting. E3g, E3h,
C2,C3

11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation

The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any adopted
municipal open space plan.

(See Part 1. C.2.c,E.1.c.,E.2.q.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 12.

[v]No

[ ]vEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem | D2e, Elb o ul
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater | E2h,
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat. E2m, E2o0,
E2n, E2p
b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. | C2a, Elc, m] ]
C2c, E2q
c. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area C2a, C2c O o
with few such resources. Elc, E2q
d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the C2c¢, Elc m] o
community as an open space resource.
€. Other impacts: 0o ]

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical
environmental area (CEA). (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c. If “No”, go to Section 13.

[v]No

[ ]YEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or E3d o o
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or E3d m] ]
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

¢. Other impacts: 0 o

Page 7 of 10

-78-




13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.
(See Part 1. D.2.j)

If “Yes™, answer questions a - f. If “No”, go to Section 14.

[VINo

[ JvEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j ] ]
b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or D2j O O
more vehicles.
c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2; u] o
d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j o O
€. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j O m]
f. Other impacts: o A

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.
(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e. If “No”, go to Section 15.

[YINo

[ JyEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part I small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k O a
b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission | DIf, O O
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences orto servea | Dlg, D2k
commercial or industrial use.
c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k m] o
d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square | Dlg D o
feet of building area when completed.
¢. Other Impacts:

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light

The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.

(See Part 1. D.2.m., ., and 0.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - . If “No”, go to Section 16.

[Y]No

[ JyEs

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur

a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local D2m O ]
regulation.

b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence, D2m, E1d u] O
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.

¢. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o O O

Page 8 of 10

-79-



d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n o |
e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing D2n, Ela O O
area conditions,
f. Other impacts: O O
16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure D NO lZIYES
to new or existing sources of contaminants. (See Part 1.D.2.q.,E.1. d. f. g. and h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - m. If “No”, go to Section 17.
Relevant No,or Moderate
Part] small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may cccur occur
a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day Eld O 4]
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.
b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. Elg,Elh (¥4
c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site | Elg, E1h O
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.
d. The site of the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the Elg,Elh O
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).
e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place Elg, Elh | O
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.
f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future D2t 4| ]
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health,
g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste D2gq, E1f 4| O
management facility.
h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, E1f %4 O
1. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of | D2r, D2s | O
solid waste.
J- The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of | E1f, Elg O
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. Elh
k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill Elf, Elg O
site to adjacent off site structures.
1. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the D2s, E1f, O O
project site. D2r
m. Other impacts: 0 0

Page 9 of 10

-80-




17. Consistency with Community Plans
The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.
(See Part 1. C.1,C.2. and C.3.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h. If “No”, go to Section 18.

[v]No

[ ]ves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur oceur
a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp C2,C3,Dla o o
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s). Ela, Elb
b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village | C2 O O
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.
¢. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2,C2,C3 ] m]
d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use | C2, C2 o o
plans.
e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not C3,Dlc, m] o
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. D1d, Di1f,
D1d, Elb
f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development C4, D2c, D2d 2 =
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. D2j
g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or | C2a o O
commercial development not included in the proposed action)
o o

h. Other:

18. Consistency with Community Character
The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.
(See Part 1. C.2,C.3,D.2, E.3)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g. If “No”, proceed to Part 3.

[v]No

[Jves

Relevant No, or Moderate
Part1 small to large
Question(s) impact impact may
may occur occur
a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas E3e, E3f, E3g o o
of historic importance to the community.
b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. c4 o o
schools, police and fire)
¢. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where | C2, C3, DIf - O o
there is a shortage of such housing. Dlg,Ela
d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized | C2, E3 o o
or designated public resources.
e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and C2,C3 o O
character.
f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape. C2,C3 O O
Ela, Elb
E2g, E2h
o ]

g. Other impacts:

PRINT FULL FORM

Page 10 of 10

-81-




Agency Use Only [IfApplicable]

Project : [WYE Yard Relocation

Date : [apri 2025

Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts
and
Determination of Significance

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance. The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact.

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not
have a significant adverse environmental impact. By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its

determination of significance.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
To complete this section:
* Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude. Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact,
¢  Assess the importance of the impact. Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to
oceur.
The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.
Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where
there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.
Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact
For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that
no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.
e Attach additional sheets, as needed.

see attached narrative

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions

SEQR Status: [] Type 1 (] Uniisted

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: [¢] Part 1 [] part 2 [] Part 3

FEAF 2019
-82-



Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information
see attached narrative

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the
The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation as lead agency that:

[/]1 A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issuned.

] B Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 61 7.7(d)).

[] c. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

Name of Action: WYE Yard Relocation

Name of Lead Agency: Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency:

Title of Responsible Officer:

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Date:

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date:

For Further Information:
Contact Person:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail:
For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to:

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of)
Other involved agencies (if any)

Applicant (if any)

Environmental Notice Bulletin: http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html

PRINT FULL FORM Page 2 of 2

-83-




WYE Yard Relocation
Portion of 2303 Hamburg Turnpike (NYS Route 5), Buffalo, NY
FEAF Part 3 Evaluation

The following impacts were identified in the Full Environmental Assessment Form (FEAF) Part 2 as
potentially being a moderate to large impact due to the proposed project. Each moderate to large
potential impact was evaluated for the anticipated magnitude and importance of the impact to determine
if the proposed project would have a significant adverse impact on the environment.

5: Impact on Flooding
b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100-year floodplain.

Proposed actions within the 100-year floodplain include the grading of existing land using
materials that exist on site, and the installation of rail tracks. There will not be any additional
impervious surfaces introduced to the project site from the proposed action and therefore it is
not anticipated that there will be a significant impact on flooding.

c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500-year floodplain.

Proposed actions within the 500-year floodplain include the grading of existing land using
materials that exist on site, and the installation of rail tracks. There will not be any additional
impervious surfaces introduced to the project site from the proposed action and therefore it is
not anticipated that there will be a significant impact on flooding.

9: Impact on Aesthetic Resources

a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource.

The proposed action is visible from certain vantage points along NYS Rt 5 which is a federally
designated scenic corridor called the Great Lakes Seaway Trial. Foliage along the road corridor
provides a natural barrier to the activity of the proposed project. Seasonally, during the winter
months the proposed project may be seen from the road corridor. The most visible portion of the
project is the area of track removal that is located directly adjacent to NYS Rt 5. After the project
is completed, the area closest to the road corridor will no longer have rail tracks or rail activity,
lessening the potential for visual impacts.

10: Impact on Historic and Cultural Resources
b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous

to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.

-84-



The proposed project is located within an area identified by NYSHPO as archeologically sensitive.
On February 18, 2025, NYSHPO issued a letter stating that their review concurred with the project
sponsor that there will not be any archaeological impacts based on the proposed project.

e(i). The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part
of the site or property.

The proposed project will alter the subject site; however, NYSHPO has concluded that there will
be no impact to historical or archeological resources.

16: Impact on Human Health

a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.

The proposed project is approximately 1,500 feet from Tinydreams Daycare located at 75 Beech
Street in the City of Lackawanna. The project is not visible from daycare, nor will it produce
unwanted nuisance of odor or light emissions that will impact the daycare in any way.

b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation.

Remediation efforts for the project site are part of a larger remediation scheme for the former
Bethlehem Steel site. The project site and surrounding parcels are subject to institutional controls
that limit property uses. Environmental easements placed on the properties as a result of the NYS
Brownfield Cleanup Program require Site Management Plans and ensure that remediation efforts
follow best practices for the restoration of the land and eventual reuse. Due to the stringent
institutional controls in place, it is not anticipated that the proposed action will have a significant
impact on existing remediation efforts or future remediation efforts.

¢. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.

Due to the contamination and site remediation that has historically occurred on the subject site,
there are institutional controls that require constant oversight and communication with the
NYSDEC. These controls are part of a Site Management Plan that includes provisions for the
prevention of spills. Additionally, if future spills occur on the subject site, contractors or site
operators will be required to immediately report the spill and follow all NYS and federal
regulations for its cleanup.

-85-



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

RESOLUTION

A meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (the "Corporation") was convened on April 23, 2025, at 12:00 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE “ILDC”) ADOPTING A NEGATIVE
DECLARATION PURSUANT TO THE NEW YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY REVIEW ACT FOR THE WYE YARD RAIL RELOATION RPOJECT

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (the “ILDC”) is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York, as amended to relieve and reduce
unemployment, promote and provide for additional and maximum employment, better
and maintain job opportunities in Erie County and to lessen the burdens of government
and act in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC and Tecumseh Redevelopment Inc. (the “Seller”) are
parties to that certain Agreement of Purchase and Sale dated as of June 24, 2021 (the
“PSA”) pursuant to which the ILDC desires to purchase, in one or more separate
transactions, certain real property as described therein, including Parcel II-1, Parcel 1I-2
and Parcel II-3 as described therein (and also collectively known as Parcel #1); and

WHEREAS, Parcel #1 is encumbered by certain railroad facilities owned,
operated, and maintained by the South Buffalo Railway Company (“SBR”), said facilities
to hereinafter to be referred to as the “Railroad Facilities”; and

WHERES, the Railroad Facilities are situate upon what is commonly referred to
as the “Wye Yard”; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to remove the Railroad Facilities from Parcel #1 to
facilitate its remediation and redevelopment in accordance with the ILDC’s intended
purposes for acquiring the property described within the PSA; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PSA, Seller has agreed to convey certain real
property adjacent to Parcel #1 known as the “POCO Yard” and to be hereinafter referred
to as the “Relocation Parcel” to SBR to facilitate the relocation of the Railroad Facilities
and thereby removing encumbrances that otherwise adversely impact the future reuse of

Parcel #1; and

-86-



WHEREAS, to accommodate the forgoing, the ILDC desire to undertake a certain
project consisting of (i) the deconstruction of the Railroad Facilities situate within the
Wye Yard and (ii) the relocation and reconstruction of the Railroad Facilities upon and
within the Relocation Parcel (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act,
Article 8 of the New York State Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations
promulgated thereto at 6 NYCRR Part 617 (collectively referred to as “SEQRA™), the
ILDC is required to undertake a review of the potential significant adverse environmental
impacts associated with the Project; and

WHEREAS, to assist the ILDC in determining whether the undertaking of the
Project may have a potential significant adverse effect upon the environment, the ILDC
has prepared and submitted a Full Environmental Assessment Form (the “EAF’) and
supporting materials (the EAF and supporting materials collectively referred to as the
“SEQRA Materials™), and copies of said SEQRA Materials are on file in the office of the
ILDC and are readily accessible to the public; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated March 13, 2025 the ILDC distributed notice of its
intent to act as lead agency to complete the SEQRA review of the Project to all involved
and interested agencies, forwarded copies of the EAF to all such involved and interested
agencies, and requested that each involved agency consent to the ILDC acting as lead
agency pursuant to SEQRA and provide any applicable comments to be considered by
the ILDC in reaching its determination of environmental significance for the Project; and

WHEREAS, none of the involved agencies objected to the ILDC acting as lead
agency within the regulatory 30-day time period pursuant to SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC desires to declare itself as Lead Agency under 6
N.Y.C.R.R. §617.6 of SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC has reviewed all information provided in the Part 1 of the
EAF and the SEQRA Materials regarding the activities proposed for the Project and the
potential impacts of the Project on the environment, and completed the responses
required in Parts 2 and 3 of the EAF; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC has considered the significance of the potential adverse
environmental impacts of the Project by; (a) using the criteria specified in 6 N.Y.C.R.R §
617.7 of the SEQRA regulations; (b) examining the EAF and the SEQRA Materials for
the Project in order to identify potential environmental impacts; and (c) thoroughly
analyzing the identified potential environmental impacts to determine their significance

and scope.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO AND ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS

FOLLOWS:

-87-



Upon due consideration by the ILDC of the SEQRA Materials, the comments
provided by the involved agencies, as well as the surveys and studies completed, the
ILDC makes the following findings:

Section 1. The ILDC has considered the Project pursuant to the parameters
set forth in 6 N.Y.C.R.R. §§ 617.2(b) and 617.3(g) of the SEQRA regulations.

Section 2. The ILDC classifies the Project as a Type I action pursuant to the
SEQRA regulations.

Section 3. The ILDC undertook coordinated review and declares itself “Lead
Agency” as said term is defined by SEQRA with respect to undertaking a coordinated
review of the Project pursuant to SEQRA;

Section 4. The ILDC has carefully reviewed the SEQRA Materials and the
criteria set forth in 6 N.Y.CR.R. § 617.7(c) of the SEQRA regulations, as well as
considered the comments received from the involved agencies regarding the Project.
Based on the foregoing, the Agency has thoroughly and comprehensively analyzed the
potential relevant areas of environmental concern, and finds that the Project will not
result in a potential significant adverse impact on the environment for the following

reasons:

Impacts to Land., Geological Features, Agricultural Uses. Community Character. as well
as Potential Cumulative Impacts:

The Project will disturb approximately 24.2 acres of land but merely removes
existing Railroad Facilities from one area to another area within the Project site, all of
which is occurring within a formerly heavy industrial area. The proposed project
includes the excavation of approximately 150,000 cubic yards of slag material and
pending further environmental testing in coordination with the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation (“DEC”) slag materials are expected to be
used to grade adjacent areas. Work related to slag material excavation will be performed
in conformance with the DEC Division of Materials Management Program Policy 5 —
Management of Soils Contaminated with Technologically-Enhanced Naturally Occurring
Radioactive Materials. In additional to slag, a portion of the proposed project is
occurring on property enrolled in the New York State Brownfield Cleanup Program
(“BCP”). Any work in these areas will be performed in conformance with the applicable
BCP Site Management Plan. As such, the Project will not have a significant adverse

impact on land.

No potential significant adverse impact to any geological features of significance
1s anticipated as no such geological features on the Project sites have been identified. In
addition, the Project is not inconsistent with adopted land use plans, and no agricultural

lands will be impacted.

For the reasons set forth above, no significant adverse impact is anticipated to
community character as the Project involves the relocation of already existing Railroad



Facilities and there will be no change in use, and no material change in the intensity of
such use associated with the construction or operation of the Project.

In addition, no potentially significant adverse impacts from cumulative impacts
are anticipated.

Impacts to Groundwater, Stormwater, Wetlands, Surface Water and Designated
Floodplains:
The Project will not have any significant adverse environmental impact on water

or from water, including surface or ground water, or from stormwater, and there will be
no significant adverse impact to wetlands.

The Project will not cause soil erosion nor otherwise create a source of
stormwater discharge that could lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving water
bodies. Soil erosion during construction will be controlled and mitigated by stormwater
management practices. As such, no significant adverse impacts to surface waters due to
potential soil erosion will be created by the Project.

Furthermore, while the Project is located within both the 100-year and 500-year
floodplains, no additional impervious surfaces will result from the proposed action and
therefor it not anticipated that there will be a significant impact on flooding.

Air Quality, Health, Noise, Odor, Light and Safety Impacts:

The Project will not result in any significant adverse impact to air quality from
traffic or operations associated with construction, including from construction vehicles.
Development associated with the Project will not create a State regulated air emissions
source and while construction will have an impact on air emissions including those from
construction equipment and material delivery vehicles, such impacts are not anticipated
to be significant, but rather short-term and discreet.

The Project is approximately 1,500 feet from Tinydreams Daycare facility.
However, it is not visible from that facility, nor will the Project produce unwanted
nuisance or odor or light emissions that will impact the daycare in any way.

Remediation efforts for the Project site are part of a larger remediation scheme for
the Renaissance Commerce Park. The Project site and surrounding parcels are subject to
institutional controls limiting property uses. Environmental easements placed on the
properties associated with the BCP program require Site Management Plans to ensure
remediation efforts follow best practices ensuring health and human safety. Due to the
stringent institutional controls in place, the proposed action will not have a significant
impact on health and human safety.

-89-



Impacts on Local Utilities and Energy:

The Project will not result in a significant adverse impact relating to utility and
energy usage. The Project will not require a change in energy demand or use and, as
such, no significant adverse impacts on local utilities or energy use will occur.

Impacts to Plants and Animals Including to Threatened or Endangered Species:

The Project will not impact any known habitats of threatened or endangered
species. The Project will also not impact any species of plants or animals that are listed
by the State of New York as rare, or as species of special concern. As such, the Project
will not result in significant adverse impacts to plants or animals.

Impacts to Aesthetic Resources:

The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on aesthetic resources
associated with the Project sites. The proposed action is visible from certain vantage
points along NYS Route 5 which is a federally designated scenic corridor called the Great
Lakes Seaway Trail. After the Project is completed, the area closest to the roadway
corridor will no longer have railroad facilities or rail activity, lessening the potential for
visual impacts. As discussed in detail above regarding impacts to land, the Project will
not have a significant impact because the uses associated with the Project sites will
remain the same after the Project is completed as they are now. Further, no significant
increase to the intensity of uses is proposed for the Project sites, which further
demonstrates there will be no potentially significant adverse impact to aesthetic
resources.

Impacts to Archeological and Historical Resources:

The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on archeological or historic
resources. The New York State Historic Preservation Office has issued a letter stating
that there will not be any archaeological impacts based resulting from the proposed
Project.

Impacts on Open Space and Recreation:

The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on existing open space and
recreation, as the Project site has been developed and used for commercial and industrial
purposes for decades, and the Project work will not change such use.

Impacts on Critical Environmental Areas:

The Project will not have a potential significant adverse impact on a Critical
Environmental Area (CEA) as no such CEA has been identified on or near the Project

sites.

-90-



Impacts on Transportation (Traffic):

The Project will not have a potential significant adverse impact on Transportation.

Section 5. Based on the foregoing, the ILDC finds that the Project will not
have a potential significant adverse impact on the environment, and will not require the
preparation of an environmental impact statement for the Project, in accordance with the
New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 8 of the New York
Environmental Conservation Law and, in particular, pursuant to the criteria set forth at 6
NYCRR § 617.7(b)-(c) of the SEQRA regulations. The ILDC therefore issues a Negative
Declaration pursuant to § 617.7 of the SEQRA regulations and directs that notice of this
Negative Declaration shall be filed and/or published to the extent required by the SEQRA
regulations and as the ILDC may deem advisable.

Section 6. This Resolution has been prepared in accordance with Article 8 of
the New York Environmental Conservation Law by members of the board of directors of
the ILDC, 95 Perry Street, Buffalo, New York 14203. Additional information regarding
this Resolution may be obtained from the ILDC at its office, telephone number (716)

856-6525.

Section 7. Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the Agency
and/or its members, officers, employees and agents with respect to this Resolution are
hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all aspects.

Section 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

Dated: April 23, 2025

-91-



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group 0

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
95 Perry Street. Suite 403
Buftalo, New York 14203
www.ecidany.com

MEMO:

Date: April 23, 2025
To: ILDC Board of Directors

RE: Erie County Grant

Background:

The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) was recently awarded a
grant from the 2025 Erie County budget for up to $250,000. The grant will be used to cover operational
and other soft costs associated with the ILDC’s land development activities. The ILDC’s is currently
working to further develop the Renaissance Commerce Park (RCP) and the Erie County Agribusiness

Park.

Projects slated for the coming year include new roadways in the Odell Street corridor, Ridge Road
corridor and relocation of the Wye rail yard at RCP and a new entrance road and utility corridor at the

Agribusiness Park.

Requested Action:

Seeking approval to enter into agreement for the 2025 Erie County Public Benefit Services contract of
up to $250,000 to support ILDC land development activities.

-92-



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

RESOLUTION

A regular meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) was convened on Wednesday, April 23, 2025 at 12:30 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) AUTHORIZING THE ILDC TO
ENTER INTO A FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF ERIE
(“COUNTY”) FOR OPERATIONAL AND OTHER COSTS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE ILDC’S LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES AS MORE
PARTICUALRLY DESCRIBED HEREIN

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the
“ILDC”) is authorized and empowered by Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of
the State of New York, as amended, to relieve and reduce unemployment, promote and provide
for additional and maximum employment, better and maintain job opportunities in Erie County
and to lessen the burdens of government and act in the public interest; and

WHEREAS, the ILDC requires funding for operational and other costs associated with
the ILDC’S land development activities, including, but not limited to (i) the development of new
roadways in the Odell Street and Ridge Road corridors (the “RCP Roadways™), and the relocation
of the WYE Rail Yard (the “WYE Rail Yard Relocation”) at the Renaissance Commerce Park,
and (ii) a new entrance road and utility corridor at the Agri-Business Park (the “Agri-Business
Park Work,” and collectively with the RCP Roadways and WYE Rail Yard Relocation, the
“Project Operational Costs™); and

WHEREAS, the ILDC does not have sufficient cash reserves in its general fund to pay
for, in the first instance, the Project Operational Costs, and the ILDC has requested funding from
the County of Erie (the “County™) to fund or assist with funding the Project Operational Costs;

and

WHEREAS, the County desires to fund the Project Operational Costs, and allocated
$250,000 in funds from the 2025 County Budget for the purpose of funding the Project Operational
Costs (the “County Funds™), and to facilitate the award of such funds, the County requested that
the ILDC enter into that certain 2025 Erie County Public Benefit Services Contract (the “Funding

Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, with respect to the Renaissance Commerce Park, and in compliance with
Atrticle 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted thereto
at 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as “SEQRA?”), the ILDC, acting as SEQRA Lead
Agency (i) on May 27, 2020, accepted a Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement for the
Renaissance Commerce Park Master Plan (the “RCP DGEIS”), (ii) on September 23, 2020,

-93.



accepted and issued a Final Generic Environmental Impact Statement for the Renaissance
Commerce Park Master Plan (the “RCP FGEIS”), and (iii) on October 28, 2020, issued and
adopted its Findings Statement for the Renaissance Commerce Park Master Plan (the “RCP
Findings Statement” and collectively, with the RCP DGEIS, and the RCP FGEIS, the “RCP ILDC

SEQRA Findings”); and

WHEREAS, with respect to the Agri-Business Park, and in compliance with SEQRA, the
ILDC, acting as SEQRA Lead Agency (i) on November 27, 2023, accepted a Draft Generic
Environmental Impact Statement for the Agri-Business Park Master Plan (the “Agri-Business Park
DGEIS”), (ii) on May 29, 2024, the ILDC accepted and issued a Final Generic Environmental
Impact Statement for the Agri-Business Park Master Plan (the “Agri-Business Park FGEIS™), and
(ii1) on June 24, 2024, the ILDC issued and adopted its Findings Statement for the Agri-Business
Park Master Plan (the “Agri-Business Park Findings Statement” and collectively, with the Agri-
Business Park DGEIS, and the Agri-Business Park FGEIS, the “Agri-Business Park ILDC SEQRA

Findings™); and

WHEREAS, with respect to the WYE Rail Yard Relocation, and in compliance with
SEQRA, on April 23, 2025, the ILDC, acting as SEQRA Lead Agency, issued a Negative
Declaration pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.7 (the “WYE Rail Yard SEQRA Findings”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO AND ERIE
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. County Funding. The ILDC hereby accepts and approves the grant of
County Funds for the purposes of funding the Project Operational Costs, and authorizes the
President/CEQ, in consultation with the ILDC’s general counsel, to negotiate and execute the
Funding Agreement with the County in furtherance of effectuating the grant of the County Funds.

Section 2. SEQRA Determinations. The ILDC hereby determines that no further
SEQRA compliance is required pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 617.10(d)(1) because the Project
Operational Costs with respect to the RCP Roadways and Agri-Business Park Work, respectively,
are related to activities that will be carried out in conformance with the conditions and thresholds
established in the RCP ILDC SEQRA Findings and Agri-Business Park ILDC SEQRA Findings,

respectively.

Section 3. Additional SEQRA Determinations. The ILDC hereby determines that no
further SEQRA compliance is required pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 6 NYCRR 617.7 because
the Project Operational Costs with respect to the WYE Rail Yard Relocation are related to
activities that will not result in any significant adverse impact on the environment as established
in the WYE Rail Yard SEQRA Findings.

Section 4. Authority. The officers, employees, and agents of the ILDC are hereby
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the ILDC to do all acts and things
required and to execute and deliver all such checks, certificates, instruments and documents, to
pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent so acting, desirable and proper to

-94.-



effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the ILDC with all of
the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the ILDC.

Section 5. Any and all actions heretofore taken or authorized by the ILDC and/or its
officers, employees and agents with respect to this resolution are hereby ratified, approved and
confirmed in all aspects.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Dated: April 23, 2025

-95.



